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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Wicomico County, Maryland
Salisbury, Maryland

- We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-lype activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Wicomico
County, Maryland as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic [inancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of Wicomico County, Maryland's managenicnt.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Wicomico Nursing Home, which
represents 6.4% and 30.4%, respectively of the assets and revenues of business-type
activities. We also did not audit the Board of Education of Wicomice County, which
represents 98.7% and 98.4%, respectively of the assets and revenues of the aggregate
discretely presented component units for the year then ended. Those {inancial statements
were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Wicomico Nursing Home
and the Board of Education of Wicomico County, is based on the reports of the other
audilors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are {ree of malerial misstatement. An
audit includes cxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the {inancial staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audil and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial
stalements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respeclive
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the agpregate
remaining fund information of Wicomico County, Maryland as of Junc 30, 2009, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash {flows, where applicable, thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued a report dated December
30, 2009, on our consideration of Wicomico County, Maryland's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of 1ts compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over the financial reporting or on compliance. That repart is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of
our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of
pension plan funding progress on pages 9-15 and 87-91 are not a required part of the basic financial
staternents but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial slatements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The supplemenlary schedules on pages 92-
108 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PLS FCompomy, OA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 30, 2009
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVFERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

Wicomico County, Marvland
Salisbury, Maryland

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the
business-type activilies, the aggregate discrelely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Wicomico County, Maryland (“the
County™),. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 30,
2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Other auditors audited the financial statements of the Wicomico Nursing Home and Lhe
Board of Education of Wicomico County, as described in our report on Wicomico County,
Maryland’s financial statemcnts. This report does nol include the results of the other
auditors testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters
that are reported on separatcly by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control
over financial reporiing as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the elfectivencss of the County’s internal
control over financial reporting,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all
deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies
or matcrial weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ol performing their assigned funcions, o
prevent or.detect misstatements on a limely basis. A significanl deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the County’s ability
to iniliate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there i1s more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the County’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the County’s internal control. We consider the



deficiencies described in 09-01 through 09-08 on pages 5-8 to be significant deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelthood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the County’s intemal control.

Our consideration of intemnal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and weuld not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies
described above, we consider item 09-01 1o be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct .and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with these
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accerdingly, we do nol express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards. '

We also noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the County in a separate
letter dated December 30, 2009.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the County Council of
Wicomico County, management, and féderal and state audit agencies and 1s not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these speeified parties.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 30, 2009



INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE - MATERIAL
" WEAKNESSES AND SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

09-01 Year End Closing Schedule — This is a repeat finding from 2008,

Condition: The year-end. closing process was delayed because some important procedures were not performed in a
timely or correct manner under the oversight of the Chief Accountant. The general ledger, along with some
corresponding closing and adjusting entries, and several schedules, reconciliations, account analyses, and other
financial information were not completed until November or December of the current fiscal year. In addition, several
reconciliations that were completed were not accurate.

Criteria: Timely and properly prepared general ledger, closing and adjusting entries, schedules, reconciliations and
account analyses serve to ensure that accurate and timely information is reported.

Effect: Lack of timely and accurate information not only at year end, but all through the fiscal year, could lead to
inaccurate decisions by management and could lead to a material misstatement of the financial statements at year
end.

Recommendation: To make the year-end closing more efficient and effective, we recommend the Finance Director
assume the responsibility for monitoring and adhering to a closing schedule, which would indicate who will perform
each procedure and when completion of each procedure is due to be accomplished. We recommend that the year-end
be closed no later than September 15",

Response: We agree in principle. We did monitor the closing schedule this year with weekly Audit Team meetings,
but the implementation of a new financial management system and the extra work it caused during this
implementation year resulted in a delay. One of the written goals of the Chief Accountant next year is to close the
year by September 15", and we believe that will be achievable next year and going forward. A much more lengthy
and detailed planning memo will be produced next year so that each team member will know exactly what their
responsibilities are, and one team member be assigned to check off completed tasks and act as a central repository for
the data.

09-02 State's Attorney's Checking Account

Condition: During the year ended June 30, 2008, the State's Attorney's department opened a checking account. For '
the past two years, this account has been combined with petty cash in the general ledger, two signatures are not
needed for checks, the bank account was not reconciled, bank statements were not kept, and the check sequence was
not consistent.

Criteria: Internal controls over checking accounts ensure that cash is not misappropriated, and the County requires
that all checking accounts opened in the County's name abide by County rules.

Effect: The conditions as stated above are indicative of a lack of internal controls over the State's Attorney's
checking account. '

Recommendation: The State's Attorney's department should separate the checking account from petty cash on the
general ledger, require two signatures for checks, require that the bank account be reconciled by someone not
recording monthly transactions, keep all bank statements, and reconcile check numbers issued to check numbers
used.

Response: We agree with the need for improved controls, and the Finance Department will work with the State’s
Attorney’s office to implement the recommendations.



09-03 Separate Bank Accounts

Condition: Several bank accounts including the Jury Duty Bank Account maintained by the Circuit Court, the Work
Release and Inmate Bank Accounts maintained by the Detention Center, the Sherriff Employee Fund, Special
Investigations, and Sherriff Sales Bank Accounts maintained by the Sheriff's Department, and the Special Loans
Programs Bank Account maintained by Planning and Zoning were not reconciled to the general ledger during the
year ended June 30, 2009. These bank accounts are reconciled to the bank statements monthly. However, the
reconciled balances are never reconciled to the general ledger.

Criteria: The bank accounts need to be reconciled to the general ledger in order to insure accurate reporting of
financial information.

Effect: The bank accounts are not reconciled to the general ledger creating inaccurate reporting of financial
information.

Recommendation: The reconciled bank statement should be sent to the Finance Department so that the general
ledger account can be reconciled.

Response: We agree with the need for reconciliation to the general ledger. However, since these are all individual
bank accounts that are not part of the County’s operating account, the revenues and expenditures do not go through
the County’s financial system. To reconcile these bank accounts to the general ledger would require monthly
recording of the revenues and expenditures that flow through these accounts into the general ledger. That leaves us
with the cost/benefit analysis of entering individual transactions vs bulk transactions (i.e., add all revenues from a
monthly period together, do the same with all expenditures) vs adjusting the balances once per year as is currently
done. We believe that as long as the monthly reconcihiations are being done on a timely basis by a person not in
control of the bank accounts, and the reconciliations are sent to the Finance Department on a monthly basis to
demonstrate that they are being done, the Finance Department can put the summary of transactions on spreadsheets
and input them into the general ledger quarterly. While this is not an ideal solution, given the resources at both the
departmental level as well as in the Finance Department, we believe this is a compromise sufficient to safeguard
County assets.

09-04 Un-reconciled Payroll Liabilities\

Condition: Several payroll liability accounts were not reconciled on a regular basis and were not reconciled by the
time of audit fieldwork.

Criteria: These liabilities should be reconciled on a regular basis and by someone not invelved with payroll in order
to ensure accurate and timely information.

Effect: Un-reconciled liability accounts prevent timely and accurate information and also could result in
misappropriation of assets.

Recommendation: We recommend that someone within the Finance Department be designated and, if required, to
be trained in the HIPA requirements in order to obtain the necessary information needed in order to perform timely
reconciliations of payroll liabilities.

Response: We agree with the necessity for reconciling payroll liabilities in a timely manner but believe that
responsibility belongs in the Payroll Department with the Finance Office providing checks and balances. Payroll
officially took this task over on 7/1/09, and a Finance staff person will continue to monitor the reconciliations done
by Payroll.



09-05 Inventory — Roads

Condition: Inventory controls are not properly working in the Roads Division. Stone inventory per physical count at
June 30, 2009 was $47,000 or 2,600 tons less than perpetual inventory records. Upon reconstruction of the card
inventory from date of fieldwork to June 30, 2009 and reviewing of stockpile, it was determined that the shortage or
unaccounted for stone was real. We did not do any further test of sales of stone to determine if missing tonnage was
accounted for but not recorded on the perpetual records. We also observed that the perpetual inventory for fuel was
the same as the physical count.

Criteria: Inventory controls should accurately monitor the receipt and consumption of goods and provide an accurate
record of goods.

Effect: The controls in place at the Roads Division are not working causing inventory to not be properly tracked.
Recommendation: We recommend that in the future physical to actual for stone inventory be tested monthly.

Response: Perpetual inventory records are adjusted when Gradall operators remove stone from the stockpile.
However, the Crew Leaders do not typically record their use of stone for placement at mailboxes, potholes,
shoulders, etc. since they use only partial loads. This use by Crew Leaders will now be documented as it accounts for
a significant amount over the year and is expected to increase due to the elimination of the budget for hot mix overlay
road maintenance.

The Solid Waste Division used approximately 1800 tons from the Roads Division stockpile for use at the dredge site
and on the landfill in 2009. They did not replenish this amount before the year-end physical inventory as planned.
This accounts for the majority of the difference between the physical count and perpetual inventory. In the future,
the Roads Division will require that these types of loans go over the scale and the scale report will be maintained in a
folder so that timely follow-up can be conducted. When replenished, the truck will also go over the scale to ensure
the amount of stone replenished approxnmately equals the amount loaned. Copies of the documentation on any loans
of stone not replenished by June 30™ of each year will be sent to the Chief Accountant so that the Finance Division
can record the loan as a receivable to Roads and a payable to the borrowing Division, and Roads can also adjust their
inventory records accordingly. The receivable and payable will be reversed when the stone 1s replenished in the new
year.

We agree that testing the physical inventory more than annually is necessary; however, Roads currently does not
have the resources to test the physical inventory of stone on a monthly basis. As the discrepancies this year were
known and have been explained, we believe that quarterly testing, coupled with the new controls as explained above,
is sufficient at this time.

09-06 Purchase Orders and Direct Requests

Condition: Purchase orders are required for all purchases over $1,000 prior to the purchase being made. Direct
payment requests have been used without permission in place of the purchase order to bypass the required
procurement procedure. Additionally, it was noted that at least one purchase order tested was dated after the invoice.

Criteria: Purchase orders should be for all purchases over $1,000 before the item is acquired. By following
purchase order procedures, budgetary constraints, vendor requirements, and bidding processes can be checked.

Effect: By not following the proper procurement procedures, unauthorized items could be purchased.

Recommendation: We recommend that purchase orders as required be prepared and approved before items are
received or ordered.

Response: We agree in parl. We agree that purchase orders are generally required for all purchases over $1,000.
However, before implementation we developed a list of exceptions where direct pays would be permitted. As we
began operating under the new MUNIS capabilities, we determined there were some additional items that warranted
the use of direct pay requests, such as clean liens related to taxable property. The Deputy Director of Finance made
those determinations based on a number of factors, including but not limited to (1} are we paying a bill or making a
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refund, (2) are the bills centralized but related to multiple departments, and (3) risk to the County of allowing a
payment to go through on a direct pay vs a purchase order. We believe the purchase order/direct pay request issue is
working correctly and efficiently and poses little risk to the County. Regarding the second issue, purchase-orders-
after-the-fact, we agree that is usually a violation of the rules unless permission was obtained in advance, or an
emergency existed. We will remind Department Heads that County policies require that a purchase order be entered
into before goods and services are obtained, not after.

09-07 Purchase Cards — Splitting Transactions

Condition: Several departments have split transactions with vendors in order to stay below the §1,000 purchase card
limit and thereby bypass the purchase order procedures.

Criteria: Purchase cards are intended to speed up the purchase process and eliminate paper usage for transactions
under $1,000 dollars. The standard purchase card has a limit of $1,000 dollars per transaction. This is a control put in
by Wicomico County. The cards will not authorize transactions over $1,000 dollars, without prior permission from
the department head and would have to be cleared with Bank of America before the purchase. This control is in place
to keep people from avoiding the $1,000 purchase order requirement. There are authorized personnel that have
purchase cards authorized for more than $1,000 transactions. Each of these people has a list of approved vendors
that the $1,000 or more purchase can be made from. There, however, is no control on the cards that limits someone
from “splitting” a transaction with the same vendor to avoid the $1,000 limit.

Effect: By not following the proper procurement procedures, unauthorized items could be purchased.

Recommendation: We recommend that department heads monitor purchase card purchases for split transactions
and that since controls that would prevent splitting transactions are probably unlikely, that a reprimand be forwarded
to individual personnel files for improper use of the system.

Response: We agree. While the Bank of America purchase card system can and has been used to find suspicious
transactions, it requires that management specifically look for these transactions. It offers tools such as grouping by
vendor and grouping by date. As we have just completed one year on the purchase card system, a reminder to
Department Heads on their responsibility to examine purchase card transactions for splitting is warranted.

09-08 Purchase Cards — Circuit Court

Condition: We found no evidence that the Circuit Court reconciled purchase card receipts to monthly reports for any
month during the year.

Criteria: Every month, a proxy reconciler is supposed to make sure that the monthly list of purchase cards
transactions for the Works System is reconciled to purchase card receipts and then signs off as having approved the
purchases. The department head is then required to sign off having approved these transactions.

Effect: By not reconciling purchase card transactions, unauthorized items could be purchased.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Circuit Court reconcile all purchase card transactions to the monthly
report. The department head should review and sign off on the reconciliation. In addition, a procedure should be in
place that periodically test checks each department to assess that the proxy reconciliation is being performed.

Response: Agree in part. All purchase cards transactions are reviewed by the Court Administrator and checked each
time a purchase is made, rather than monthly, which is a good and timely internal control. The Court Administrator
verifies the account number and approves the invoices before she signs off. However, the monthly reconciliation
process is designed to catch those receipts that may be overlooked if someone is making purchases on the card that
they shouldn't and not turning in receipts. Without matching receipts to the monthly printout from the BOA Works
system, a manager may not have timely information on whether people are charging things and NOT turning in
receipts. Therefore, the Court Administrator will begin the monthly reconciliation process going forward.
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MANAGEMENT*S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis of Wicomico County’s (County) financial performance provides an overview of the
County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Please read it in conjunction with the County’s
financial statements, which begin on page 16.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

s The County’s government-wide results of operations show a decrease in net assets of the primary government of about
$22.3 million which is attributable pritnarily to two things. First, the County used fund balances in the General, Roads,
and Capital Projects Funds. Second, long term debt for the Board of Education projects does not result in an increase
in capital assets (see page 10).

¢  Within its main operating fund (“the general fund™), the County’s results of operations shows expenditures, including
transfers, in excess of new revenues of about $7.2 million, primarily due to the use of budgeted carryforward. The
County had projected to use about $9.2 million of carryforward and used less than budgeted.

¢ General fund revenues decreased about $6.5 million compared to last year, and general fund expenditures, including
transfers, decreased about $2.8 million compared to last year. The larger increases in expenditures were in the areas of
debt, education, public safety, and health.

s  The County’s rainy day reserves remained the same — since the FY2009 budget was less than the FY2008 budget, there
was no necessity to fund anything additional for the rainy day reserve in fiscal year 2009. Total reserves decreased
about $200 thousand due, to expenditures for the MAC Senior Center

s  The general fund total budget for fiscal year 2009 was about $2.4 million less than last year, due primarily to decreases
in service charges and the use of carryforward.

USING THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This report consists of a series of financial statements, notes, and supplementary information. The Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (on pages 16 and 17) provide information about the activities of the County as a
whole (i.e., government-wide) and present a longer-term view of the County’s finances. Fund financial statements start on
page 18 and report the County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information
aboul the County’s most significant funds, detailing how these services were financed in the short term as well as what
remains for future spending. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the County
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. Footnotes accompany the financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with them. The series of supplemental schedules located at the end of the
report provides more detailed information about activities that roll up into the povernment-wide or fund statements that
may be of interest to selected segments of County citizens.

REPORTING THE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

One of the most frequent questions asked about the County’s finances is, “Is the County as a whole better off or
worse off financially as a result of the year’s activiies? The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
beginning on page 16 report information about the County as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer the
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question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual method of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting method used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the County’s net assels and changes in them. You can think of the County’s net assels
— the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the County’s Ninancial health, or financial position.
Over lime, increases or decreases in the County’s niet assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating.  Of course, many other factors impact the overall health of the County, including changes in the County’s
property lax base, the condition of the County’s roads, and the impact of the revenue cap. In addition, it should be noted
that when the County borrows money to build or improve school buildings, the buildings and improvements themselves
appear on the Board of Education’s [inancial statemenis as an asset while the debt appears on the County’s financial
statements without the accompanying asset. As of June 30, 2009, the County carried aboul $80.5 million in debt on its
portion of the linancial stalements under primary government related to school assets that appear in the component units
section under Board of Education.

On he Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the County is divided into three kinds of activities:
¢ Govemmental activities — Most of the County's basic services are reported here, including public safety, recreation,
and general administration. Property laxes, other taxes, fees, and some grants finance most of these activities. Many

of these activities are not intended to be self-supporting and therefore show a negative result for the year.

* Business-type activities — In this section, we show those activities where the County charges a fee 10 customers to help
cover all or part of the cost of certain services it provides, such as solid waste disposal.

¢ Component units — The County includes 2 separate legal entities in its report — the Board of Education and the
Wicomico County Free Library. Ahhough legally separate, “component units” are important because the County is
financially accountable {or all or part of their operations.

Table 1

Highlights from the primary government portion of the Statement of Net Assets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008:

(In millions of dollars)
Governmenial Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current and other assets 88.95 91.38 21.85 20,08 110.80 111.46
Capital assets 78.40 77.89 63.88 63.23 142.28 141,12
Total Assets 167.35 169.27 85.73 83.31 . 253.08 252.58
Current and other
liabilities 29.06 18.76 T 347 3.17 32.53 21.93
Long-term liabilities 95.46 83.36 9.34 9.30 104.80 02.66
Total Liabilities 124,52 102.12 12.81 12.47 137.33 114.59
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 8.76 23.36 59.90 59.01 68.66 §2.37
Restricted net assets 25.47 30.23 0.31 031 | 2578 30.54
Unrestricted net assets 8.60 13.56 12.71 11.53 21.31 25.09
Total Net Assets 42.83 67.15 72.92 70.85 11575 138.00

The Statement of Net Assets for governmental activities for the fiscal ycar ending June 30, 2009 shows total net
assels of $42.8 million, with the unrestricted net assets amount of $8.6 million. The County’s business-type aclivities show
$12.7 million in unrestricted net assets.




The net assets of business-type activities generally are not used to make up for any deficit in governmental
activities. Historically, the County only uses these net assets to finance the continuing operations of the business-type

activities they support.

Table 2

Selected Highlights from the Statement of Activities as of June 30, 2009 and 2008:

{In miltions of dollars)'

: Business-Type
Governmental Aclivities Activities Component Units
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Program Revenues

Charges for Services 9.65 10.14 20.54 21.42 4.34 3.24

Operating & Capital Grants 10.60 7.00 4.67 9.11 76.03 43.43
General Revenues

Property Taxes 60.33 59.22

Local Taxes 51.63 58.03 0.97 0.94

Other (including transfers) 1.86 5.79 1.00 1.39 154.78 149.41
Total Revenues | 134.07 140.18 27.18 32.86 235.15 196.08
Propram Expenses
Governmental Activities

General Government 21.03 22.07

Public Safety 29.42 27.85

Public Works 13.98 11.76

Health & Welfare 7.54 7.46

Education 77.35 65.22

Culture and Recreation 3.53 3.57

Interest on Long-term debt 4.23 4.20
Business-Type Activities

Solid Waste 6.54 5.60

Airport 3.70 3.25

Nursing Home 838 7.94

Youth & Civic Cenler 5.28 5.30

Other 1.81 1.90
Component Units

Board of Education 191.17 184.40

Library (and Other) 2.90 2.91
Total Expenses 157.08 142,13 25.71 23.99 194,07 187.31
Excess Before Special Items
and Transfers (23.01) (1.95) 1.47 8.87 41.08 8.77
Special Items (.05) 0.02
Transfers (0.76) (.51) 0.76 {51)
Change in Net Assets (23.77) (2.51) 2.25 938 41.08 8.77
Net Assets - Beginning of year' 66.60 69.66 70.67 6147 159.44 150.67
Net Assets - End of year 42.83 67.15 72.92 70.85 200.52 159.44

' Net Assets — Beginning of year are restated as explained in the notes to the financial statements on page 84-86.

Table 2 shows that the County's lotal net assets decreased by about $19.6 million. This decrease was primarily the
result of the use of fund balances in the General, Roads, and Capital Projects Funds, and the exclusion of Board of

Education capital assets funded by general fund debt.
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Table 3

Net Cost of Governmental and Business-Type Activities:

(In millions of dollars)
Revenues Expenditures Net Cost (Revenue)
2009 2008 2009 2008 T 2009 2008

Governmental

General government 4.49 3.05 21.03 22.07 16.54 19.02

Public safety 5.20 6.95 2942 27.85 24.22 20.90

Public works 2.39 1.63 13.98 11.76 11.59 10.11

Education : 77.35 65.22 77.35 65.22

Others 6.57 5.50 11.08 15.23 4.51] 9.73
Business Type © 2521 30.53 25.71 23.99 0.50 (6.54) |

Table 3 presents the net cost of the County’s governmental and business-type activities. The net cost shows the
financial burden that was placed on the County’s taxpayers. The net revenue in the-business activities was primarily due to
capital expansion at the Airport.

REPORTING THE COUNTY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The County’s fund financial statements begin on page 18 and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds, as opposed to the government-wide financial stalements that provide information about the govemment
as a whole, Some funds are required to be established by legislation or other restrictions, but the County Council can also
eslablish other funds to help it manage money for particular purposes, such as grants. Under accounting standards, the
County's two types of funds — governmental and proprietary {enterprise) — use different accounling approaches.

e  Governmental funds — Many of the County’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of (hose funds and the balances lefi at year-end that are available for spending, These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
finaneial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the County’s general govemment operations and the basic services it provides. (Governmental fund
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the County’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmenlal activities
(reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on
a separate page following the fund financial statements,

e Propriclary (enterprise) funds — When the County charges cuslomers for services it provides, these services are
generally reported in enterprise funds. Enterprisc funds arc reported in the same way that all activities are reported in
the Statement of Net Assels and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the County’s enterprise funds are the same as the
business-type activities we report in the government-wide stalements but provide more detail and additional
informaticn, such as cash flows. '

The County’s governmental funds (as presented on pages 18-21) report a combined fund balance of $67.5 million.

The General Fund

For fiscal year 2009, the general fund’s original budgetary appropriation, or amount authorized for expenditure,
was $129.5 million. The final budgetary appropriation, after adjusting for carryforward, Civic Center event and Tourism
expenditures and transfers in, was about $130.3 million The County spent about $123.3 million, a decrease over last year
of about $2.8 million. New revenues were less than budget and were about $116.1 million, a decrease over last year of
about $6.5 million. This was partly caused by housing-relaled revenues performing under budget, income tax revenues less
than expected, and the Stale’s decision to discontinue per diem payments to the counties for housing State prisoners at the
Detention Center. Expenditures were less than budget but exceeded revenues by about $7.2 million, leading to a decrease
in the general fund balance.




Roads

The Roads povernmental fund showed expenditures over new revenues in FY2009 of $1.7 million. However, this
was expected as the fund had budgeted to use up to $2.5 million of its fund balance. Subsequent 1o June 30, 2009, the State
cut Roads funding a 1otal of 94% for FY2010. It is anticipated that the Roads fund will require drastic cuis and/or
appropriations from the General Fund in FY2010 and beyend. The Goevernment Accounting Standards Beard has indicated
that if State funding is likely to resume in the foresceable future, the Roads Fund can remain as a Special Revenue Fund
within the Governmental Funds category. The County intends to keep the Roads Fund as a Special Revenue Fund until
such time as the State indicates it will not resume funding the majority of the Roads budget.

Enterprise Funds

The County has a number of enterprise funds. All of the major funds showed a positive change in net assets.
While a number of these funds show operating losses, those losses include depreciation, a non-cash expense, and when
non-operating revenues are added in, all show a net gain. The Solid Wasle Enterprise Fund was the victim of a fraud
scheme, bul no adjustment was made 1o the 2008 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
because all of the expenses relating o the fraud were expensed through annual operating expenditures and were therelore
already accounted for. See notes to the {inancial statements on page 78.

Capital Assel and Debt Administration

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the County’s primary government had about $142.3 million invesied in a broad
range of capital assets, including buildings, park [acilities, roads & bridges, and equipment, net of depreciation. Table 4
shows highlights of the Counly’s primary government's key capital assets, as of year end.

Table 4 - Capilal Assels as of June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In millions of dollars)
Business-Type
Govermnmental Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land, Buildings

& Inlrastructure 235.35 229.09 116.73 111.19 352.08 340.28
Accumulated Depreciation {156.94) {151.20) (52.85) (47.96) (209.79) (199.16)
Total Capital Asscts, Net

of Depreciation 78.41 77.89 63.88 63.23 142.29 141.12

Major projects funded in 2009 not included above were school projects for the Board of Education ($17,280,000),
building projects at Wor-Wic Community College {($242,606), a senior service center ($400,000), initial work towards a
new main building [or the library system ($150,000). Included above were various public works projects ($1,802,000), and
a contingency ($295,394) 1o cover the issuance cosis of the bonds and allow for any overruns up 10 the amount of the
available contingency.

The County's liscal year 2010 capital budget called for it to spend $30,075,437 for capital projects for school
construction ai the Board of Education, a public works project, and various capiltal improvements around the County,
including activities at Rccreation and Parks, WorWic Community College, and the Airport.  Of this amount, $16,465,000
was bonded, $5,528,750 came from inlemat funds, and the balance was postponed to a future year. More detail about the
Counly’s capilal assels is presented in the Capital Assets [ootnote to the financial statements beginning on page 46.




Debt

Al year-end, the County had about $101.7 million in general obligation bonds and notes outstanding subject to the
County’s debt Limitation vs $89.2 million last year — an increase of about 14.0 pereent — as shown in table 5. This reflects
the Council’s intention to fund high priority projeets, including completion of Bennett High School, but otherwise keep
debt levels as low as possible given the extent of County needs.

Table 5

Ouistanding Debt at Year-End

In millions of dollars)
Govermmental Business-Type
Activilies Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

General obligation bonds* 100.30 §7.66 1.37 1.57 101.67 89.23
Loans 0.28 35 0.07 09 0.35 44
Leases and notes payable 0.28 .59 135 1.25 1.63 1.84
Debt not subject to

limitation {0.28) {.59) (1.35) (1.27) {1.63) (1.86)
Totals 100.58 88.01 1.44 1.64 102.02 89.65 |

*Includes revenue bonds for businesslike activities

The County’s general obligation bond rating in fiscal year 2009 was AA-+ from Standard and Poor’s, A+ from
Fitch, and A2 from Moody'’s.

The County’s charter limits the amount of general obligation debt that the County can issue to 3.2 percent of the
assessable base of real property plus 8 percent of the assessable base of personal property and certain operating real
property of public utilities. The County’s outstanding general obligation debt of $101.7 million is significantly below this
$£249.9 miilion limit.

THE COUNTY AS TRUSTEE
REPORTING THE COUNTY’S FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ pension and other-post employment benefits (OPERB)
plans. 1t is also responsible for other assets that — because of a trust arrangement — can be used only for the trust
beneficiaries. Besides the pension and OPEB trusts, the County has five fiduciary funds which are reported under “Agency
Funds” in the separate Stalements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 25 and 26, We
exclude fiduciary activities [rom the Counly’s other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to
finance its operation. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their
iniended purpose.

ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET, AND CIIANGE OF GOVERNMENT

The County’s clected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal-year 2010 budget,
tax rates, and fees thal will be charged for the business-type activilies, including:

¢ The economy. The Uniled Stales economy was in a recession when the County’s budgel was passed. This had a
negative effect on the budgel, resulting in a decrease of almost 3.8%. Due to continued higher-than-normal
unemployment and uncertain income tax revenues, the Counly continued freezes it had implemented the spring of 2009
for personnel and capital expenditures to help ensure that the FY2010 budgel was executable on its face as FY2010
revenue bepgan to accrue. However, based on income tax distributions in June, July, and August, the County
determined in the fall of 2009 that its revenue estimates for FY2010 were likely overstated, and subsequently the
County Executlive presented a budget amendment to Council with about a $4 million wrile-down in revenue and
expenditures. As of December 2009, this amendment is still under consideration. See aiso “Slale Funding” below.




¢ State funding. Although the State strikes its budget before the County is required by charter to strike its fiscal year
budgel, Staie budgel amendments are common, sometimes leaving the issue of State funding for certain programs
pncertain. For example, in August 2009, after the Counly passed its FY2010 budget, the State imposed further cuts,
resulting in a cumulative 94% decrease in highway user revenues for the Roads Fund in FY2010. It is anticipated that
with its current budget deficit, State funding will be severely constrained in fiscal year 2011, with resultant constraints
on the County budget.

s  The revenue cap. The County is required to set the tax rale to cap revenue from real property taxes (excluding new
construction) at the lesser of 2 percent or the CPI-U. As the County assessable base increases, the County must lower
the tax rate Lo conform (o the cap. This also affects the personal property tax rate, which is set by law at 2.5 times the
real property tax rate. For fiscal year 2010, the real property lax rale was lowered from $0.814 to $0.759 per $100 of
assessed value, and the personal property tax rate was therefore also lowered from $2.035 to $1.898 per $100.

These factors were taken into account when adopting the general fund budget for fiscal year 2010. Amounts available
for appropriation in the general fund budget are $124.6 million, a decrease of about 3.8% over the fiscal 2009 budget of
$129.5 million. As noted above, a $4 million revenue write-down is also pending, and the County Council passed a budget
amendment authorizing furloughs to partially offset this revenue decrease. In general, most County agencies experienced
reductions. A notable exceplion was the Board of Education, who received an increase due to maintenance of effort — the
requirement to spend the same amount per student from one year to the next. With the cuts in highway user revenues, the
Roads fund is currently seeking an appropriation from the general fund to continue critical operations, and is facing similar
difficulties in FY2011. The County's general fund is also facing budget decreases in fiscal year 2011, and those decreases
will likely be accommodated with service reductions and possibly personnel decreases through deauthorization of vacant
positions or layoffs. As for the County’s business-type activities, we expect the 2010 results will not be significantly
different from the 2009 results.

The County changed its form of government in November 2006 when it elected its first County Executive, The
executive powers of the County Council moved to the new County Executive, and the Council retained its legislative
powers. Under the new Charter, the Executive prepares the operating budget and the Council has no power to increase any
proposed appropriation but may lower it. The fiscal year 2009 budget was the third one prepared by the Executive.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general overview

of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about
this report, please contact one of the following:

Policy Decisions County Executive Rick Pollitt or County Administrator Ted Shea 410-548-43801
Financial Results Director of Finance Patricia Petersen 410-548-4840
Fund Financial Statements Chief Accountant John Ellis 410-548-4844
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
ASSETS ,
Cash and equivalents $ 73,546,240 $ 20,750,163 ) 94,296,403
Investments - 200,000 200,000
Receivables 3,279,784 2,295,616 5,575,400
Internal balances 2,044,278 (2,042,049) 2,229
Due from other governmental agencies 7,673,792 506,341 8,180,133
Inventories 357,708 99,373 457,081
Other assets 2,046,568 49,599 2,096,167
Restricted deposits - - -
Net capital assets 78,404,700 63,879,377 142,284,077
Total assets 167,353,070 85,738,420 253,091,490
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,711,671 1,422,339 17,134,010
Accrued payroll and taxes 1,028,168 251,897 1,280,065
Due to other governmental agencies 365,622 147,667 513,289
Deferred revenues 1,373,361 626,653 - 2,000,014
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Capital lease obligations 91,111 601,142 692,253
Bonds, notes, and loans payable 8,612,043 319,174 8,931,217
Accrued interest 713,715 5,785 719,500
Compensated absences 1,027,183 99 389 1,126,572
Due to other governmental agencies 136,213 - 136,213
Due in more than one year .
Capital lease obligations 190,889 745,275 036,164
Bonds, notes, and loans payable 91,970,856 2,314,186 04,285,042
Compensated absences 2,573,276 265,230 2,838,506
Due to other governmental agencies 732,236 - 732,236
Accrued landfill closure and post closure costs - 6,011,805 6,011,805
Total liabilities 124,526,344 12,810,542 137,336,886
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,764,558 59,899,600 68,664,158
Restricted for
Capital projects - - -
Debt service - 222,788 222,788
Other projects 25,467,305 83,595 25,550,900
Unrestricted 8,594,863 12,721,895 21,316,758
Total net assets $ 42,826,726 S 72,927.878 $ 115,754,604

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Component Units

Total
Board of Wicomico Componcent
Education Free Library Units Total
$ 1,389,541 $ 891,160 $ 2,280,701 $ 96,577,104

26,147 828 - 26,147,828 26,347 828
739,313 4,632 743,945 6,319,345
- - - 2,229
13,926,372 33,735 13,960,107 22,140,240
24,237 - 24,237 481,318
- - - 2,096,167
1,184,498 - 1,184,498 1,184,498
184,475,089 2,051,010 186,526,099 328.810,176
227,886,878 2,980,537 230,867,415 483,958,905
20,218,694 23,460 20,242,154 37,376,164
1,699,662 22,026 1,721,688 3,001,753
356,410 - 356,410 269,699
1,923,533 - 1,923,533 3,923,547
1,544,089 - 1,544,089 2,236,342
- - - 8,931,217
- - - 719,500
245,947 72,148 318,095 1,444,667
: - - - 136,213
1,487,379 - 1,487,379 2,423 543
- - - 94,285,042
2,657,838 91,703 2,749, 541 5,588,047
- - - 732,236
- - - 6,011,805
30,133,552 209,337 30,342,889 167,679,775
181,443,621 2,051,010 183,494,631 252,158,789
5,112,284 - 5,112,284 5,112,284
- - - 222,788
8,427,856 23,712 8,451,568 34,002,468
2,769,565 696,478 3,466,043 24,782 801




Functions/Programs

Primary Government

Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Culture and recreation
Inierest on long-term debt
Tolal governmental activities

Business-type aclivilies

Solid Wasle

Airport

Nursing Home

Urban Services

Convention & Visitors Bureau

Civic Center

Other business-type aclivities
Total business-type aclivilies

Total primary government

Component Units

Board of Education

Wicomico County Free Library
Total component units

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2009

Primary Government

Program Revenue

Charges for

Services, Fees, Operating Capital Grants
Fines, Grants and and

Expenses Forfeitures Contributions Contributions

by 21,027,395 3 3,117,943 § 1,371,108 3 5,330

29,423 846 3,568,609 1,632,775 .

13,982,027 1,173,383 1,123,007 1,692,212

7,541,718 573,557 3,360,284 -

77,348,246 - - -

3,533,297 1,216,987 1,414,423 -

4,229,543 . . -

157,086,072 9,650,479 8,901,598 1,697,542

6,544,218 5,598,668 - -

3,700,302 925,348 4,574,796 -

8,380,370 8,496,953 - -

455,487 401,618 - 48,554

1,306,040 708,738 43,265 -

5,280,313 4,373,287 - -

46,157 39,085 - -

25,712 887 20,543,657 4,618,061 48,554

§ 182,798,959 § 30,194,176 $ 13,519,659 § 1,746,096

§ 191,171,840 § 4,150,837 £ 33,781,369 $ 41,990,294

2,808,392 188,665 253,809 6,263

$ 194,070,232 $ 4,339,502 § 34,035,178 § 41,996,557
GENERAL REVENUES

Taxes

Property laxes, levied for general purposes

Income and other miscellaneous taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Payment from Wicomico County - unresiricted contributions
Unresiricted investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Special itlem - net loss on disposal of fixed assets

Transfers

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets, as restated - beginning

Net assets - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Component Units

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nef Assefs

Total
Governmental Business-type Board of Wicomico Free Component

Activities Activities Total Education Library Units Total
$ (16,533,017) - % (16,533,017 § - 3 - 5 - $ (16,533,017
(24,222,458) - (24,222 458) - - - (24,222,458)
(9,993,425) - (9,993,425) - - - (9,993,425)
(3,607,877) - (3,607,877) - - - (3,607,877)
(77,348,246} - (77,348,246) - . - (77,348,246)
(901,887} - (901,887) - - - (901,887}
(4,229,543) - (4,229,543) - - - (4,229,543)
(136,836,453) - {136,836,453) - - - (136,836,453)
- (945,550) (945,550) - - - {945,550}
- 1,799,842 1,799,842 - - - 1,799,842
- 116,583 116,583 - - - 116,583
- (3,315 (5,315) - - - (5,315)
- (554,037) (554,037) - - - (554,037)
- (907,026} (907,026} - - - (907,026)
- (7,072) (7,072} - - - (7,072)
- (502,575) (502,575) - - - (502,575}
$ (136,836,453) § (502,575) % (137,339,028) $ - 3 - 3 - $ (137,339,028)
3 - - % : - 5 {(111,249,340) §% - 5 (111,249.340)  § (111,249,340)
. - - - (2,449,655) (2,449,655) (2,449 655)
3 - - 3 - $(111,249340) § (2,449,655} § (113,698,995) § (113,698,995)
$ 60,328,149 - § 00,328,149 3§ - 8 - 3 - $ 60,328,149
51,629,388 968,336 52,597,724 - - - 52,597,724
- - - 101,713,302 26,916 101,740,218 101,740,218
- - - 50,204,655 2,459,886 52,664,541 52,664,541
1,334,929 237,336 1,572,265 278,256 8917 287,173 1,859,438
528,456 766,440 1,294,896 91,273 - 91,273 1,386,169
- 22,726 22726 - - - 22,726
(761,835) . 761,835 - - - - -
113,059,087 2,756,673 115,815,760 152,287,486 2,495719 154,783,208 270,598,965
(23,777,366) 2,254,098 (21,523,268) 41,038,146 46,064 41,084,210 19,560,942
66,604,092 70,673,780 137,277,872 156,715,180 2,725,136 159,440,316 296,718,188
$  42826,726 72,927,878 % 115,754,604 § 197,753,326 § 2,771,200 $ 200,524,526 $ 316,279,130




ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable, net
Other receivables
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventonies
Prepaid expenses
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and taxes

Due to other funds

Payable 1o other governments

Deferred revenues

Accrued compensated absences

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Reserved for
Inventories
Encumbrances
Prepaid expenses
Other purposes
Unreserved
Designated for
Subsequent years' expenditures
Fund purposes
Unreserved and undesignated
Total fund balances
Total liabtlities and fund
balances

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND -

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Fund - Grants Funds Capital Projects Roads Funds Funds
$ 23588258 h 84,910 b 43,131,113 $ 5,174,074 $ 1,567,885 h) 73,546,240
542,355 - - - - 542 355
888,837 160,314 - 1,140,154 3,753 2,193,058
2.464,184 - - - - 2,464,184
5,192,647 2,481,145 - - - 7,673,792
- - - 353,295 4413 357,708
557,603 5,000 - 31,914 - 594,517
33,233,884 2,731,369 43,131,113 0,699,437 1,576,051 87,371,854
2,194,949 516,907 12,516,538 319,807 58,127 15,606,328
941,941 14,434 - 71,793 - 1,028,168
- 125,147 - 250,000 44 75% 419,906
365,622 - - - - 365,622
496,061 832,393 - - 44907 1,373,361
950,550 11,616 - 65,017 - 1,027,183
4949123 1,500,497 12,516,538 706,617 147,793 15,820,568
- - - 353,295 4413 357,708
640,294 214,650 1,011,324 604,349 56,418 2,527,035
557.603 - - - - 557,603
- - 29,603,251 - - 29,603,251
4,726,824 - - 1,509,345 - 6,236,169
3,740,350 1,016,222 - 3,525 831 1,367.427 15,649,830
12,619,690 - - - - 12,619,690
28,284 761 1,230,872 30,614,575 5,992 820 1,428 258 67,551,286
$ 33,233884 $ 2,731,369 b 43.131,113 $  6,699437 3 1,576,051 ) 87,371,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Total fund balance, governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:

Pre-payment of post-relirement employment benefits.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in this fund financial statement,
but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net
Assets.

Cenain other long-term assets are not avatlable to pay current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in this fund financial
stalement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement
of Nel Assets.

Retainage not due in the current period and therefore not reported in the
funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
{rom current period assets and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Long-term debt
Capital leases
Other long-term habilities

Accrued interest
Compensated absences

Net Assets of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets

$

67,551,286

1,452,051

78,404,700

544,371

(105,343)

(100,582,899)
(282,000}
(868,449)
(713,715)

(2,573,276)

3

42,826,726

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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REVENUES
Property taxes
Income taxes
Other taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
General government
Public safety
Detention Center
Public works
Health and welfare
Social services
Education

Recreation and culture

Miscellaneous
Debt service
Prineipal

Interest and other charges

Tota] expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from long-term debt, net

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, as restated - beginning
Fund batances - ending

Other Total
Govermmental Governmental
General Fund Grants Funds Capital Projects Roads Funds Funds

3 60,328,149 b - 3 - b - b - $ 60,328,149
41,198,096 - - - - 41,198,096
4,037,397 - - 6,270,373 123,522 10,431,292
1,279,087 - - - - 1,279,087
1,969,785 9217244 - - - 11,187,029
5,296,990 - - 1,103,141 1,168,479 7,568,610
90,241 - - - - 90,241
606,467 11,798 - 6,279 4,054 628,598
1,295,963 - - 31,993 6,973 1,334,929
116,102,175 9229042 - 7,411,786 t,303,028 134,046,031
9.510,711 226,988 236,246 - - 9,973,945
14,416,346 1,174,200 - - - 15,590,546
12,611,356 - - - - 12,611,356
762,201 3,245,658 1,750,167 9,113,672 111,793 14,983,491
3,694,667 - 97.650 - - 3,792.317
469,849 3,056,068 293,391 - - 3,819.308
56,278,836 - 21,069,410 - - 77,348,246
1,850,757 1,520,554 - - 962,472 4,333.823
11,252,100 - - - 700 11,252,800
7,844,921 - - 200,000 30,198 8075119
4,101,628 - 1,715 50,000 7.371 4,160,714
122,793,372 9,223,508 23,448,579 9,363,672 1,112,534 165,941,665
{6,691,197) 5534 (23,448,579) (1,951,886) 190,494 (31,895,634)
- - 20,330,834 - - 20,330,834

316,624 83,392 423,996 300,000 111,947 1,235,959
(860,362) - (690,064) (91,766) (355,602) (1,997,794)
(543,738) 83,392 20,064,766 208,234 (243,655) 19,568,999
(7,234,935) 88,926 (3,383.813) (1,743,652) (53,161) (12,326,635}
35,519,696 1,141,946 33,998 388 7,736,472 1,481,419 79,877,921
3 28 284 761 3 1,230,872 $ 30,614,575 $ 5992820 3 1,428258 $ 67,551,286

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statetnents.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT
OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: ' % (12,326,635)

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because

such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Stalement of

Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is

allocated over the assels' estimated useful lives as depreciation expense for

the period.

This is the amount by which depreciation $5,998,912 exceed capital outlays -

$6,421,629 in the current period, ' 422717

Governmental funds report the entire net sales proceeds from sale of an asset

as revenue because it provides current financial resources, In contrast, the

Statement of Activities reports only the gain on the sale of the assets. Thus,

‘the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of

the asset sold. (11,944)

Governmental funds report initial loans as expenditures. In contrast, the

Statement of Activities reports the loans as notes receivable. Governmental

funds report the principal and interest payments received on those loans as

revenue because it provides current financial resources. In contrast, the

Statemenl of Activities reports only the interest payments. Thus, the change

in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the issuance of new

loans and the principal payments received on all loans. (65,223)

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In

contrast, the Statement of Activities (reats such issuance of debt as a liability.

Governmental funds report repayment of bend principal as an expenditure. In

contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such repayments as a reduction in

long-term liabilities. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded

repayments. (11,940,772)

Revenues and expenditures are reported in the statement of activities on the
accrual basis and in the governmental funds when they provide or use current
financial resocurces. The following are differences between the governmental
funds and the statement of aclivitics:

Payment on other liability not reflected on Governmental funds 179,136
Accrued interest not reflected on Governmental funds . (68,829)
Pre-payment of post-retirement employment benefits 338,345
Accrued compensated absences not reflected on Governmental funds (304,161)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (23,777,366)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009
Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste Airport Nursing Home
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents b 11,523,866 A 796,121 $ 1,765,746
Certificates of deposit - - 200,000
Accounts receivable, net 628,503 46,890 1,157,927
Other receivables - - -
Due from other funds 250,000 - -
Due from other governments - 506,341 -
Inventories - - . 58,072
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 44,434 2,386 773
Total current assels 12,446,803 1,351,738 3,182,518
Non-current assets
Capital assels
Construction in progress - 2,577,787 -
Land and improvements 302,259 6,963,302 49,286
Land disposal sites - liner costs 18,480,245 - -
Runways and ramps 12,556 45,575,428 -
Buildings and improvements 494,305 11,841,926 3,134,004
Equipment and fumiture 2,002,017 369,375 1,473,330
Vehicles 6,285,854 905,110 8,950
Less accumulated depreciation (14,883,084) (26,403,354) (2,381,160)
Total non-current assets 12,784,152 41,829,574 2,284,450
Total assets © 25,230,955 43,181,312 5,466,968
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities .
Accounts payable 189,049 208,388 799,328
Accrued payroll and taxes 53,831 8,302 133,317
Accrued interest payable 147 960 -
Due to other funds ~ - - -
Due 10 other governmental entities - - 147,667
Deferred revenues 169,279 131,010 -
Compensated absences 48,026 13,505 -
Capital lease obligation 601,142 - -
Bonds, notes and loans payable 126,809 37,517 116,476
Total current liabilities 1,188,283 491,082 1,196,788
Non-eurrent liabilities .
Compensated absences 131,899 27,602 -
Capital lease obligation 745,275 - -
Bonds, notes and loans payable 707,214 138,075 1,077,060
Accrued landfill closure and post closure costs 6,011,805 - -
Total non-current liabilities 7,556,193 165,677 1,677,060
Total liabilities 8,784 476 656,759 2,273 848

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 10,603,712 41,653,982 1,090,914
Restricted for debt service - . i
Restricted for other purposes - - -
Unrestricted 5,842,767 870,571 2,102,206

Total net assets 3 16,446,479 g 42,524,553 $ 3,163,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Convention &

Other Enterprise

Urban Services Yisitors Bureau Civic Center Funds Total

§ 1,574,464 740,508 § 4255222 93,836 § 20,750,163
- ‘ - - - 200,000

106,698 154,014 188,194 2,145 2,284,371
11,245 - - - 11,245

- - - - 250,000

- - - - 506,341

- 138 41,163 - 99,373

- - _ 2,006 - 49,599
1,692,407 895,060 4,486,585 95,981 . 24,151,092
- - - - 2,577,787
1,878,754 1,815 479,093 - 9,764,509
- - - - 18,480,245

- - - - 45,587,984

- 553,894 12,423,111, - 28,447,240

- 192,566 584,807 - 4,622,095

- 39,575 6,200 - 7,245,729
{1,600,656) (258,939 (7,319.019) - {52,846,212)
278,098 528911 6,174,192 - 63,879,377
1,970,505 1,423,971 10,660,777 95,981 88,030,469
74,976 7,254 53,217 87 1,422,339

- 11,732 42,614 1,101 251,897

- - 4,678 - : 5,785

640 - 2,260,373 1,036 2,292,049

- - - - 147,667

137,749 - 188,615 - 626,653

- 9,094 28,364 - 99,389

- - - - 601,142

- 12,222 26,150 - 319,174
213,365 40,342 2,634,011 2,224 5,766,095

- 24,090 81,639 - 265,230

- - - - 745,275

- 76,148 315,689 - 2,314,186

- - - - 6,011,805

- 100,238 397,328 - 9,336,456

213,365 140,580 3,031,339 2,224 15,102,591
278,098 440,541 5,832,353 - 59.899,600
222,788 - - - 222,788
83,595 - - - 83,595
1,172,659 842,850 1,797,085 93,757 12,721,895
§ 1,757,140 1,283,391 § 7.629,438 93,757 § 72,927,878




WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
- ‘ ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

REVENUES
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services

Contractual services

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Other supplies and expenses

Insurance claims and expenses

Provision for post closure costs

Direct costs of events

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Operating grants and contributions
Passenger facility charges, net of fees
Interest expensc
Miscellaneous expenses

Total non-operating revenue

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions

Transfers in

Transfers out

Special item - gain on sale of capital assets
Change in net assels

Total net assels, as restated - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Airport Nursing Home
$ 5,598,668 $- 0925348 § 8,431,581
- - 65,372
5,598,668 925,348 8,496,953
2,428,952 408,276 5,706,519
470,635 15,015 891,324
149,340 160,191 263,725
127,152 140,119 83,288
708,976 89,924 1,123,281
- 28,373 118,062
321,752 - -
2,245,643 2,825,259 158,031
6,452 450 1,667,157 8,344,230
(853,782) (2,741,809) 152,723
158,679 849 12,964
418,000 - 105,925
- 4,574,796 -
- 240,573 -
{91,768) (12,348) (36,140)
- {20,797 -
484,911 4,783,073 82,749
(368,871) 2,041,264 235,472
(92,157 - -
19,199 3,527 -
(441,829 2,044,791 235,472
16,888,308 40,479,762 2,957,648
£ 16,446,479 § 42,524,553 $ 3,193,120

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Convention & Other
Visitors Enterprise
Urban Services Bureau Civic Center Funds Total

$ 396,388 _ - $ 4365677 i 39,085 $ 19,756,747
5,230 708,738 7,610 - 786,950
401,618 708,738 4,373,287 39,085 20,543,697

- 448,302 1,601,127 41,731 10,634,907

331,118 647,880 52,393 1,510 2,409,875
7,990 20,716 298,041 233 900,236

- 28,701 97,783 - 477,043

70,795 128,108 410,785 2,683 2,534,552

- - - - 146,435

. . - 321,752

- - 2,467,665 - 2,467,665

44,746 27,724 337,706 - 5,639,109
454,649 1,301,431 5,265,500 46,157 25,531,574
(53,031) (592,693) (892,213) (7,072) (4,987,877)
23,414 104 41,326 - 237,336
1,542 829,736 139,000 - 1,494,203

- 43,265 - - 4,618,061

- - - - 240,573
(838) (4,609) (14,813) - (160,516)
- - - - (20,797)

24,118 868,496 165,513 - 6,408,860
(28,913) 275,803 (726,700) (7,072) 1,420,983
48,554 - - - 48,554

- 52,334 999,473 - 1,051,807
- (21,000) (176,815) - (289,972)

- - - - 22,726

19,641 307,137 95,958 (7,072) 2,254,098
1,737,499 976,254 7,533,480 100,829 70,673,780
§ 1,757,140 1,283,391 $ 7,629.438 3 93,757 $ 72927878




WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Solid
Waste Airport
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 5,500,265 § 1,165,813
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,369,656) (376,013)
Payments to employees for services (2,509,400) (404,837)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ) 1,621,209 384,963
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating transfers (92,157) - -
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (690,774) -
Donations - -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (782,931) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on notes and bonds payable (105,526) (12,214)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (299,402) (4,840,220)
Principal payments on notes and bonds payable (708,916) (11,914)
Capital contributions ' - : -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets, net of expenses 26,023 3,900
Federal and state grants - 4,574,796
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (1,087,821) (285,646)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 158,679 349
Other income (expense) 418,000 (20,797)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 576,679 (19,948)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 327,136 79,369
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,196,730 716,752
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 11,523866 % 796,121

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (R53,782) S (2,741,809)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,245,643 2,825,259
Passenger facility charges, net of fees - 240,573
Provision for bad debt - - -
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (80,058) 7,172
Other receivables - _ -
Prepaid expenses (44.,434) {2,386)
Due to/from other governmental agencies - (65,0062)
Inventories - -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 50,433 63,434
Landfill closure and post-closure cost 321,752 ' -
Deferred revenues (18,345) 57,782
Net eash provided (used) by operating activities b 1,621,209 § 384963

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Convention Other
Nursing Urban & Visitors Enterpise
Home -~ Services Bureau Civic Center Funds Total
$ 8,517,746 % 354,120 § 659,741 % 4,156,951 & 61,270 $ 20,415,906
(4,195,224) (401,198) (878,080) (3,310,587) (7,975) (10,538,733)
(3,858,988) - (439,235) (1,579,220) (41,610) (8,833,290)
463,534 (47,078) (657,574) (732,856) 11,685 1,043 883
- - 31,334 822,658 - 761,835
- (120,230) - 366,824 - (444,180)
105,321 - - - - 105,321
105,321 (120,230) 31,334 1,189,482 - 422,976
(36,140) {(1,676) (6,864) (14,833) - (177,253)
(129,490) - (9,346) (334,481) - (5,612,939)
(116,477 (25,000) (29,835) (25,514) - (917,656)
- 48,554 - - - 48,554
- - - - - 29,926
- - 43,265 - - 4,618,061
(282,107) 21,878 (2,780) (374,828} (2,011,304)
12,964 23,414 104 41,326 - 237,336
604 1,542 829,736 136,000 - 1,368,085
13,568 24,956 829,840 180,326 - 1,605,421
300,316 (120,474) 200,820 262124 11,685 1,060,976
1,465,430 1,694,938 540,088 3,993 098 82,151 19,689,187
$ 1,765,746 3§ 1,574,464 § 740,908 § 4255222 8§ 93,836 § 20,750,163
3 152,723 3 (53,.031) 3 (592,691) 3§ (892,213 3§ (7,072) (4,987,877)
162,665 44,746 27,724 337,706 - 5,643,743
- - - - - 240,573
135,070 . - - - - 135,070
137,147 (11,024) (48,997) (131,169) 22,185 (104,744)
- (8,570) - - - (8,570)
- 838 19,963 (2,006) - (28,025)
(205,370) 22,543 - - - (247,889)
2,637 - 108 13,217 - 15,962
100,932 7,867 (63,679) 26,776 (3,428) 182,335
- - - - - 321,752
(22,270) (50,447 - (B5,167) - (118,447)
, $ @7078) % G373 T (732,856) % 11,685 1,043,883




WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Total assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to agency funds
Due to general fund
Deposits
Seized money escrow

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in 1rust for retirement benefits

Total net assets

JUNE 30, 2009
Agency Pension Health Care

Funds Trust Fund ~ Trust Fund Total
1,655,045 % 5,946,449 883,521 ‘ $ 8,485,015
- 29,152,952 - 4,234,954 33,387,906
14,224 - - 14,224
1,669,269 35,099,401 5,118,475 41,887,145
92,906 - - 92,906
1,452,021 - - 1,452,021
2,229 - 2,229
30,888 - - 30,888
91,225 - - 91,225
1,669,269 - - 1,669,269
- 35,099,401 5,118,475 40,217,876
- % 35,099401] 5,118,475 § 40,217,876

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2009
Pension Health Care
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
ADDITIONS o
Contributions $ 5,022,332 % 1,543,316 § 6,565,648
Investment earnings
Net decrease in fair value of investments (3,835,227) (337.517) (4,172,744)
Interest and dividends 956,406 90,969 1,047,375
Loss on sale of investments (3,067,466) (341,192) (3,408,658)
Total net investment earnings (5,946,287) (587,740 {(6,534,027)
Total additions (923,955) 955,576 | 31,621
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 1,734,463 - 1,734,463
Administrative 165,549 15,850 181,399
Total deductions 1,900,012 15,850 1,915,862
Change in net assels (2,823,967 936,726 (1,884,241)
Nel( assets - beginning 37,923,368 4,178,749 42,102,117

Net assets - ending $ 35099401 R 5,118,475  § 40,217,876

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Wicomico County, Maryland (the County) is a political subdivision of the State of Maryland,
established in 1867 and subsequently incorporated under Article 25 of (he Annotated Code of the State of
Maryland, and is governed by an elected executive and a seven-member elected County Council. The
County government directly provides all basic local governmental services, except for water and sewer.

The financial slatements of the County are presented as of June 30, 2009 and for the year then
ended and have been prepared in confonmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable to local govemments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification).

Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, based on the standards established by GASB Statement No. 14,
The Financial Reporting Entity, the County includes the vartous departments, agencies, and other
organizational units governed directly by the County Executive and County Council of Wicomico County,
Maryland as the Primary Government. The component units are included in the reporting entity because the
Primary Govemment approves budgetary requests, provides a significant amount of funding and guarantecs
repayment of debl 1ssued by the various organizations.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, component units are reported in the County's basic financial
statements as follows:

Blended component units reported within the Primary Government:

Enterprise Funds:
Solid Waste Landfill
Salisbury - Ocean City: Wicomico Regional Airport
Wicomico Nursing Home
Wicomico County Urban Services Commission
Convention & Visitors Bureau
Civic Center

scretely presented component units:
The Board of Education of Wicomico County
The Wicomico County Free Library, Inc.

Copies of the financial statements for each discretely presented component unil can be obtained
directly from the component units.

Resource {lows (except those that affect the statement of net assets/balance sheet only, such as
loans and repayments) between a primary government and its discretely presented component units are
rcported as external transactions—that is, as revenues and expenditures. Resource flows between the
primary governmenl and blended component units are classified as interfund transactions 1n the financial
slatements.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related Organizations

The County Commissioners are responsible for appointing the members of the boards of various
other organizations, but the County’s accountability for these organizations do not extend beyond making
the appointments. Several of these other organizations are funded by Federal or stale governments.

Basic Financial Statements—Govemment-Wide Financial Statements

The County’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the County as a
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the County’s major funds). Both the government-wide and
fund financial stalements categonize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The
following are classified as governmental activities: legislative, executive, judicial, elections, police and fire
protection, detention center, health, education, parks, recreation and culture, grants, agricultural and general
administrative services. The County’s Solid Waste, Airport, Nursing Home, Urban Services, Convention
& Visitors Bureau, and Civic Cenler are classified as business-type activities. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the County’s own programs.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-
term debt and obligations. The County’s net assets are reported in three parts—invested in capital assets,
net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The County first utilizes restricted
resources (o finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Stalement of Activities reports both the gross and nct cost of each of the
County’s functions, business-type activities and component units, The functions are also supported by
general government revenues (property, income and oiher laxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.)
The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (public safety,
culture and recreation, elc.) or a business-lype activity. Program revcnues include (a) f{ees, fines, and
charges paid by the recipienis of goods or services offercd by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or<apital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that
are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The net costs (by function, business-type aclivity, or component unit) are normally covered by
general revenue (property, income, or gas taxes), intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change
in the County’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.

~ Basic Financial Statements—Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the County are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. FEach fund is accounted for by providing a separale set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilitics, reserves, fund equity, rcvenues, and expenditures/expenses. The various
funds are reported by generic classifieation within the financial statements.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basic Financial Statements—Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The following fund types are used by the County:
1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the pgovernmental funds’ measurement (in the fund slatements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of
the major governmental funds of the County:

a. General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Grants Fund is a special revenue fund that receives monies from state and federal agencies
to administer various programs, involving safely, health and welfare, and culture and
recreation, within the County.

¢. Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capilal facilities other than those financed by business-
type/enterprise funds.

d. Roads Fund is a special revenue fund that receives funding from thc State Department of
Transportation to be expended for the repair and improvement of county roads.

The County’s non-major governmental funds include Recreation, Tax Ditches, and
Agricultural Tax.

2. Enterprise Funds:

The focus of enterprise fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes
in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following 1s a description
of the major enterprise funds of the County:

a.. Solid Waste Fund is used to account for activities related to the safe disposal of solid
waste, to mect all state, Federal, and county regulations and to provide for recycling.

b. Airport Fund is used to account for the activities at the Salisbury-Ocean City; Wicomico
Regional Airport.

¢. Nursing Home Fund 1s used to account for the aclivities at the Wicomico Nursing Home.

d. Convention & Visitors Bureau Fund is used to account for activities related to the
enhancement of the economic impact of tourism in the County.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basic Financial Statements—Fund Financial Statements {Continued)

2. Enterprise Funds (Continued):

e. Civic Center Fund is used to account for activities related to the Wicomico Youth and
Civic Center.

f.  Urban Services Fund is used to supply water and sewer to homes outside of municipalities
in the County. The Urban Services Commission’s charter requires that the Urban Services
Fund be reported separately on the fund financial statements.

The County’s non-major enterprise funds include Local Matching, Electrical Board and
Prophecy Residential Treatment.

3. Fiduciary Funds:

The focus of fiduciary fund measurement is to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. The County uses an agency fund to account for assets held for,
and due to, inmates of the Wicomico County Detention Center. The County’s Pension Trust
Fund is used to account for the activity related to the Employees’ Retirement Plan of
Wicomico County. The County’s OPEB Trust fund is used for the activity related to the Post-
Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan for the Employees of Wicomico County. The County’s
Sheriff's Escrow account includes monies collected from the employees to cover employee
specific celebrations that the county is not obligated to cover. The Narcotics Task Force seized
monies escrow is monies confiscated in drug related activities and the funds are held until court
case verdict and for use by the Task Force thereafter. The County’s Volunteer Fire Fund is a
capital sinking fund used to account for the annual appropriation from the General Fund to be
used for the purchase of new capital equipment for the 14 volunteer fire companies in
Wicomico County. The Forest Conservation Fund is used to account for the activity related to
developmental projects which by county code require funding for a forestation or reforestation
by the developer at the completion of a project.. All of these funds are custodial in nature and
do not involve measurement of results of operations. With the exception of the pension and
health plan, the County presents only a statement of fiduciary net assets and does not present a
statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. The above funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to
support the County’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide
financial statements.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

. The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the enterprise fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.
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Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmenta] fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified aecrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they
are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible
within the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose,
the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditurcs generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. .

Taxpayer-assessed income, gross receipts, and sales taxes are considered “measurable” when in the
hands of intermediary collecting governments and are recognized as revenue at that time. Anticipated
refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and
their validity seems certain.

Income taxes are reported as revenue if received by August 31* of each fiscal year. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded in governmental funds as soon as they are
measurable and available to pay liabilities of the current period.

In the State of Maryland, the State has assumed the responsibility for the collection of all income
taxes and for distributing those collections to the respective countics. The counties set their individual tax
rates within limits provided by State law; however, collections and pursuil of delinquent taxes are the
responsibility of the State.

The State holds an unallocated income tax reserve related to late filers, delinquent returns and
audits, and unallocated withholding, These revenues are not available to pay liabilities of the current
period. Further, collections related to delinquent retums and audits and unallocated withholding may not
occur and be remitied Lo the Counly for several years. The Stale annually adjusts the amount they are
estimating for each Counly’s share in the reserve. As of June 30, 2009, the County’s share was $9,772,120.

The amount related to late filers, delinquent retums and audits, and unallocated withholding is a
rolling estimate — i.e., the County does not receive earmmarked funds from Lhe reserve, the State merely
adjusts the County’s share at year end for the revenue it distributed during the prior year related to these
revenue sources offset by the new estimates for the succeeding year. In addition, in fiscal year 2010, the
State has borrowed from this fund to help close the State’s budget shortfall. Therefore, the County does not
accrue for this receivable because il is not the intention of the State to pay those funds to the County in
fiscal year 2010, but to continue to withhold funds related to these annual ongoing delinquencies as it
distributes the applicable actual and estimalcd income tax revenue during the fiscal year offset by changes
to the estimated level of delinguencies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The County reports deferred revenue on its statement of net assets and governmental funds balance
sheet. Deferred revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by
the County before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurring of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the
County has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed, and revenue is
recognized.

GAAP allows governments Lo choose either not to implement, in enterprise funds, pronouncements
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989 unless those
pronouncements are specifically adopted by GASB (provided that this is applied on a consistent basis) or to
continue to foliow FASB standards for these fund types. The Primary Government has elected not to
implement FASB pronouncements issucd after that date for its enterprise funds.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges Lo customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; (2) operaling granis and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Intermally dedicated resources arc rcported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricied resources as they are needed.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Article VII, Section 705 of the County Charter requires each departmenl or agency financed in
whole or in part by County funds to prepare and submit an annual budget. Formal budgetary accounting is
employed as a managemenlt control [or the County's General Fund, Roads Special Revenue Fund, Solid
Waste Landfill Enterprise Fund, the Salisbury - Ocean City: Wicomico Regional Aimport, the Convention
and Visitors Bureau, the Civic Center, and the Elecirical Board. The annual budget for the General Fund
and the Roads Special Revenue Fund are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by
those funds. The budgets for the Solid Waste Landfill and Airport Enterprise Funds are adopted under a
basis consistent with GAAP, except that the Airport does not consider depreciation. The budgets shown in
the financial statements are the budget erdinances for the vear ended June 30, 2009,
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Budgets and Budgelary Accounting (Continued)

The County follows these procedures in establishing the General Fund budgetary data reflected in”
the financial statements:

(1) On or before March 15, the Director of Finance submits to the County. Executive a proposed
budgei that includes requested expenditures and anticipated revenues for the fiscal year
commencing on July 1. )

{2) On or before April 15, the County Executive submits 1o the County Council a proposed
budget that includes requested expenditures and anticipated revenues for the fiscal vear
commencing July 1.

(3} A public hearing is conducted on or before May 15 (o ebiain taxpayer comments.

(4) MNo later than June 1 or such date as may be set by resolution, but not later than June 15, the
budget shall be adopted by the Annuat Budget and Appropriations Bill.

(5) Transfers of appropriations between departments may be made during the last quarter of the
fiscal yvear upon request of the Countly Executive and approval of the County Council.

(6) All annual appropriaticns lapse at fiscal year end.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepled in the United States of America requires the County to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reporled amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses/expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are
reporied as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Servieces provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are \realed as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated
as transfers. Transfers between governmental or enterprise funds are netted as part of the reconciliation lo
the government-wide [inancial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are maintained in the Civic Center and Recreation and Parks opcrations of the County's
General Fund for concessions and in the Roads Department for matenials and supplies. The Board of
Education of Wicomico County maintains materials, supplies, and food and related inventories. The
Wicomice Nursing Home inventories consist of medical, linen, and dictary supplies. All inventories are
stated at the lower of cost or market under the first-in, first-out method of inventory valuation.

-~

Capital Assels

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reportied at fair market value as of the
date reccived. Additions, improvements and other capital autlays that significantly extend the useful life of
an assct are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on alt assets 15 provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 15 - 20 years
Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years
Runways and ramps 15— 25 vears
Vehicles 02 - 05 years
Infrastructure 15— 35 years
Machinery, office fumiture, and equipment 03 — 10 years

Long-Term Obligalions

In the government-wide financial statements and enterprisc fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligalions are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmenlal activities, business-type aclivities, or enterprise fund type Statement of Nel Assets, Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bend premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reporied as deferred charges.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reporied as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuances costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures,

Compensaled Absences

The County accrues accumulated unpaid vacation, sick leave, compensalory time, holidays worked,
and associated employee-related costs when carmed (or estimated to be earmed) by the employee. The non-
current portion {the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is
maintained separately and represents a reconciling ttem between the fund and government-wide
presentations.
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Taxes and County Services

The County and its separate funds do not pay Fcderal, state or local taxes, with the exception of
social security taxes. Except for certain limited reimbursements of administrative expenscs and employee
benefits made from other funds, the General Fund is not reimbursed by the other funds {or general staff
services. '

Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenucs are accrued. Property taxes are billed and deemed
collectible within the same period in which the taxes are levied. Subsidies and grants to enterprise funds,
which finance either capilal or current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB
No. 33. In applying GASB No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and
the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, inctuding
time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted beflore the eligibility requirements are met are reported
as advances by the provider and delerred revenue by the recipient.

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1. Taxes are levied on July 1
and if the annual payment option is applied, are due and payable on or before September 30; on October |
following the levy, unpaid taxes are in arrears. lf the semiannual payment option is applied, the first
payment is due and payable on or before September 30 and the second payment is due on or before
December 31; failure to meet these payment dates puts the account in arrears. The County bills and collects
its own taxes. Real property laxes uncollected as of 60 days after June 30, 2009 are considered unavailable
to pay liabilities that are owed at the balance sheet date and therefore are included in deferred revenue in
the fund statements. An allowance is established for delinquent personal property taxes to the extent that
their collectability is improbable. The tax is levied on the [ull real property assessable basis; however,
effective for the year ending June 30, 2002 and subscquent, the taxpayers passed a revenue cap on the
growth of real property tax revenues, Therefore, the Council cannot increase real property tax revenue over
the previous year’s revenue, excluding new construction, more than the lesser of 2% or the CP1-U.

On July 1, 2001, the County bepan billing and collceting property taxes for the City of Salisbury,
MDD, As of June 30, 2009, both local property taxes receivable and due to other governments included
$38,762 due on behalf of and to the City of Salisbury.

Cash Flows

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the enterprise funds have defined cash

equivalents as all highly liquid deposits and other investment instruments that have a maturity of three
months or less.
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Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are
reported in the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

Encumbrances

Primary government encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for
goods or services. Encumbrance accounting — under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation — is utilized in the governmental fund types. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are
reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during a subsequent year,

Reserved and Designated Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to
change.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Wicomico County

Deposits and Investments Other Than Pension Funds:

The County is authorized to invest monies for which it has custody or control. The types of
investments are in accordance with Section 6-222 of the Maryland State Finance and Procurement
Article.

The County's investment policy for its non-pension funds authorizes the investment of money in
any of the following types of investments:

a. U.S. Treasury Obligations

b. Maryland Local Government Investment Pool
c. Repurchase Agreements

d. Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

The policy requires collateralization for certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. Such
collateral must be at least 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest. The Annotated Code
of Maryland (Arlicle 95, Section 22) requires that deposits with financial institutions by local
governments be fully collateralized. The County's policy requires collateral to be held by a custodian in
accordance with Section 6-209(c) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of
Maryland and acceptable collateral as specified under Section 6-202 of the same document.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Wicomico County (Continued)

With the exception of the deposits in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP)
and $200,000 in certificates of deposit of the Nursing Home, Wicomico County and its blended
component units do not have any investments

At June 30, 2009, the carrying amount of the County’s cash deposits including the certificates of
deposit for the primary government was $95,676,693 and the bank balance was $98,741,829. All
deposits are carried at cost plus accrued interest. Of the bank balance $92,652,137 was deposited in the
MLGIP. Deposits in the MLGIP comply with Article 95 of the Annotated Code of Maryland and are
rated “AAAm” by Standard and Poors. Financial statements and additional information for the Maryland
Local Government Investment Pool c¢an be obtained at the following  website:
https:www.mipip.com/migip. himl,

The remaining deposits of $6,089,692 were secured as follows:

FDIC coverage § 132,290
Secured with collateral in County’s name : 5.957.402
) 6,089,692

Custodial Credit Risk

These collateralization requirements described in the preceding section are established to reduce
custodial credit risk which ts the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be
returned to it. The County docs not have a deposit policy for custedial credit risk. As of June 30, 2009
the County’s bank balances other than MLGIP was not exposed to custodial credit risk as $132 290 was
insured by the FDIC, and the remaining $5,957,402 was secured by acceptable collateral.

Credit Risk

All the investments are either in fully insured certificates of deposit or in the MLGIP which has a
Standard and Poors rating of “AAAmM”.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the County allows full investment of all available funds in the MLGIP.
Investments in MLGIP represent 97% of total cash.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Wicomico County {Centinued)

Interest Rate Risk

The County’s primary concern related to cash and investments is security and liquidity and
therefore has no long-term investments and 97% of its cash deposits in the MLGIP. For the 12 months
ended June 30, 2009, the actual yield of the ML.GIP was 1.41%. The fair value of the pool is the same as
the value of the pool shares. '

Wicomico County - Pension and Other Trust Fund Investments

The Investment policy of the County's Retirement Plan Trust requires that the pension funds be
managed as a balanced account with approximalely a 60% equity, 40% govemment and corporate bond
mix. Cash or cash equivalents are o be less than 3% on a long-term basis. The policy also has certain
restrictions on types and amounts of investments that may be included in the portfolie, e.g. foreign
securities, real estate, industry groups, leans, controlling interests.

The County’s pension and health plan investments are held by State Street and Aetna Insurance
Company in the County's name.

Pensicn and health plan funds are invested as follows:

Pension GASB 45
State Street AETNA State Street
Cash and equivalents 5 5,705,487 5 240,962 3 883,521
Government bonds 876,846 - 85,192
Commercial paper (less than 1 year) 33,863 297,780 53,212
Corporate bonds 8,137,622 1,701,599 1,141,063
Equities 13,743,290 127,620 2,135,902
Foreign assets 4234332 - 815,585

Total § 32,731,440 $ 2,367,961 $ 5,118,475
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) -

Wicomico Countv - Pension and Other Trust Fund Investments (Continued)

State Street:
Corporate bond issues for pension and health plans at rounded market value held at June 30, 2009 are as
follows:

Due
A 215,000 AT&T Inc. 4.85% 02/15/14
A 295,000 Alltel Corp 7.88% 07/01/32
h) 80,000 Baker Hughes Inc. 6.50% 11/15/13
h) 185,000 Baker Hughes Inc. 7.50% 11/15/18
A 70,000 Bank of America Corp. 4.88% 09/15/12
3 240,000 Berkshire Hathaway 4.63% 10/15/13
3 80,000 Berkshire Hathaway 5.00% 08/15/13
b 220,000 Caterpillar Inc. 7.00% 12/15/13
5 125,000 Cisco Systems Inc, 5.50% 02/22/16
5 125,000 Conoco Phillips 5.20% 05/15/18
5 255,000 Conoco Phillips 4.75% 02/01/14
A 40,000 Deere & Company 8.50% 01/09/22
3 151,000 E.L. du Pont de Nemours 6.00% 07/15/18
3 210,000 E.I du Pont de Nemours 5.88% 01/15/14
h) 150,000 Duke University 5.15% 04/01/19
h) 25,000 GTE Corp. 6.84% 04/15/18
i 150,000 General Dynamics Corp. 5.25% 02/01/14
$ 221,000 General Electric Co. 5.25% 12/06/17
b 280,000 General Electric Capital Corp. 3.00% 12/09/11
5 280,000 Goldman Sachs Group 3.25% 06/15/12
5 221,000 Hewlett Packard Co. 5.50% (3/01/18
3 80,000 Hewlett Packard Co. 6.13% 03/01/14
A 270,000 Honeywell International 4.25% 03/0113
i 100,000 IBM Corp. 4.25% T 09/15/09
hY 280,000 JP Morgan Chase & Co. 3.13% 12/01/11
i 235,000 Medtronic Inc. : 4.75% 09/15/15
hY 200,000 Nucor Corp. 5.75% 12/0117
hY 220,000 Occidental Pete 6.75% 01/15/12
b 235,000 PPG Industries Inc. 6.88% 02/1512
b 235,000 Pepsico Inc. 7.90% 11/01/18
i 230,000 Pfizer Inc. 5.35% 03/15/15
i 30,000 Pharmacia Corp. 8.70% 16/15/21
i 380,000 Pitney Bowes MTN 4.75% 05/15/18
A 125,000 Pitney Bowes Inc. 4.63% ‘ 10/01/12
3 270,000 Proctor & Gamble Co. 4.60% 01/15/14
$ 200,000 Prudential Financial Inc. 4.50% 07/15/13
3 150,000 Schering Plough Corp. 5.55% 12/01/13
$ 65,000 Tele-Communications Inc. 7.88% 08/01/13
3 78,000 Toyota Motor Credit Corp. 4.35% 12/15/10
h) 125,000 United Parcel Service 5.50% 01/15/18
A 135,000 United Tech Corp. 5.38% 12/15/17
5 180,000 Washington Post Co. 7.25% 02/01/19
A 280,000 Wells Fargo & Co. 3.00% 12/09/11
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Wicomico County - Pension and Other Trust Fund Investments (Continued)

AETNA;

Aetna investments consist of 3240,962 in liquid assets and part of a $1.6 billion pool backed by the full
financial strength of Aetna Life Insurance Company's general account.

Corporate bonds are 80% of the portfolio. Within the pool, the five largest corporate bond holdings and
their S&P ratings at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

S&P Raling
AT&T Inc. 3 26,000,000 Af A2
JP Morgan Chase & Co. $ 25,000,000 A/A
Province of Quebec 3 25,000,000 A+iAa2
CitiGroup Ine, h 25,000,000 A-/Baal
HSBC Holdings PLC i) 22,000,000 AJA3

Board of Education of Wicomico County

The Board is authorized to invest monies for which il has custody or control. The types of
investments are in accordance with Section 6-222 of the Maryland State Finance and Procurement
Article.

The Board investment policy for its non-pension funds authorizes its comptrolier to invest money
in any of the following types of investments:

U.S. Treasury Obligations

Local Government Investment Pool
Repurchase Agreements
Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

aooo e

The policy requires that the investments be on a short-term (less than one year) basis and establishes
maximum portfelio percentages for Investments as follows:

Maximum Percent

Diversification by Instrument of Portfolio
U.S, Treasury Obligations 100%
Local Government Investment Pool 100%
Repurchase Agreements (Master Repurchase
Agreements Required) 30%
Collateralized Certificates of Deposit
' (Only Maryland Commercial Banks) 10%
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Board of Education of Wicomico Counly {Continued)

The policy requires collateralization for certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. Such
collateral must be al least 102% of market value of principal and accrued interesi. The Annotated Code
of Maryland (Article 95, Section 22) requires that deposits with financial institutions by local boards of
education be fully collateralized. The Board’s policy requires collateral to be held by a custodian in
accordance with Section 6-209(c) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of
Maryland and acceptable collateral is as specified under Section 6-202 of the same document.

These collateralization requirements are established to reduce custodial risk which is the risk that
in the event of a bank failure, the Board’s deposits may not be returned to it.

At June 30, 2009, the Board's non-pension funds were invested as follows:

CARRYING BANK
VALUE BALANCE
Cash and cash equivalents % 1,388,196 § 2,784,176

The bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Insured g 2,784,176
Uninsured and Collateral Held by Pledging .
Bank’s Trust Department in the Board’s Name -

Uninsured and Collateral Held by Pledging
Bank’s Trust Department Not in the Board’s Name -

3 2,784,176

The Board invests in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) which was
created with the passage of Article 95 Section 22G of the Annotaled Code of Maryland. The MLGIP is
managed by PNC Safe Deposit and Trust Company which is under administrative control of the State
Treasurer. A MLGIP Advisory Committee of current participants has been formed to review the activities
of the Fund on a quarterly basis and provide suggestions to enhance the pool. The MLGIP is rated
“AAAmM” by Standards and Poors. The fair value of the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.
Investments are recorded at cost, which approxiinates market value. Investments in MLGIP totaled
$26,147,828 at June 30, 2009 with $7,769,336 restricted/reserved for health insurance rate stabilization,

Pension and other trust fund investments:

The Investment policy of the Board’s Relircment Plan Trust requires that the pension funds be
managed as a balanced account with approximately a 60% equity, 40% government and corporate bond
mix. Cash or cash equivalents are to be less than 3% on a leng-term basis. The policy also has certain
restrictions on types and amounis of investments that may be included in the portfolio, e.g. foreign
securities, real estate, industry groups, loans, controlling interests.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

The Board’s pension investments are held by State Street, Aetna Insurance Company and Janus in
Board’s name. The Board’s Retiree Health Plan Trust investments are held at State Street in the Board's

name,

Pension and other trust funds are invested as follows:

Cash and equivalents

Govermmment bonds

Commercial paper (less than 1 year)

Caorporate bonds
Common stock
Total

State ) State Street

Street AETNA Janus {GASE 45)
596,183 b 167,932 3 20,605 $ 252,153
278,675 67,173 - 55,117
- 391,842 - -
3,124,429 2,171,922 730,671 866,734
6,407,202 - 833633 2,117,015
10,406,489 $ 2,798,869 3 1,584,969 $ 3,291,019

Corporate bonds held at June 30, 2009 are rated by Standard & Poor’s as follows:

Percent of Corporate Bond Portfolio

State State Street
Rating Street AETNA Janus {GASB 45)
AAA 18.10% 28.90%
AA+ 4.00%
AA 4.70% 5.10%
AA- 7.40%
At 10.60% 20.33% : 53.70%
A 45.30% 59.35% 15.80% 46.30%
A- 2.50% 20.33%
BBB+ 7.40%
BBB
BBB- 30.60%
BB 12.00%
B 4.10%
Below B 1.60%
Not Rated 1.90%
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Corporate bond issues held at June 30, 2009 are as follows:
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Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2009

State Street;

70,000
100,000
15,000
70,000
30,000
75,000
20,000
75,000
45,000
45,000
85,000
25,000
45,000
65,000
60,000
25,000
115,000
75,000
100,000
50,000
100,000
75,000
35,000
90,000
75,000
100,000
100,000
60,000
50,000
100,000
75,000
- 60,000
30,000
135,000
75,000
95,000
77,000
80,000
91,000
30,000
45,000
50,000
50,000
100,000

AT&T Inc.

Alliel Corp

Baker Hughes Inc.
Baker Hughes Inc.

Bank of America Corp.
Berkshire Hathaway
Berkshire Hathaway
Caterpillar Inc.

Cisco Systems Inc.
Conoco Phillips

Conoco Phillips

Deere & Company

E.l. du Pont de Nemours
E.l. du Pont de Nemours
Duke University

GTE Corp.

General Dynamics Corp.
General Electric Co.

General Electric Capital Corp.

Global Marine Inc.
Goldman Sachs Group
Hewtlelt Packard Co.
Hewlet Packard Co.
Honeywell Intemational
IBM Corp.

JP Morgan Chase & Co.
Medironic Inc.

Nucor Corp.

Occidental Pete

PPG Industries Inc.
Pepsico Inc.

Pfizer Ine.

Pharmacia Corp.

Pitney Bowes MTN
Pitney Bowes Inc.
Proctor & Gamble Co.
Prudential Financial Inc.
Schering Pilough Corp.

Telc-Communications Inc.
Toyota Motor Credit Corp.

United Parcel Service
United Tech Corp.
Washington Post Co.
Wells Fargo & Co.
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4.85%
7.88%
6.50%
7.30%
4,88%
4.63%
5.00%
7.00%
5.50%
5.20%
4.75%
8.50%
6.00%
5.88%
5.15%
6.84%
525%
5.25%
3.00%
7.00%
3.25%
5.50%
6.13%
4.25%
4.25%
3.13%
4,75%
5.75%
6.75%
6.88%
7.90%
5.35%
8.70%
4.75%
4.63%
4.60%
4,50%
5.55%
7.88%
4.35%
5.50%
5.38%
7.25%
3.00%

Due
02/15/14
07/01/32
11/15/13
11/15/18
09/15/12
10/15/13
08/15/13
12/15/13
02/22/16
05/15/18
02/01/14
01/09/22
07/15/18
Q1/15/14
04/01/19
04/15/18
02/01/14
12/06/17
12/09/11
06/01/28
06/15/12
03/01/18
03/01/14
03/01/13
09/15/09
12/04/11
05/15/15
12/01/17
01/15/12
02/1512
11/01/18
03/15/15
10/15/21
05/15/18
10/01/12
01/15/14
07/15/13
12/01/13
08/01/13
12/15/10
01/15/18
12/15/17
02/01/19
12/09/11



WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2609

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

AETNA:
Comporate bond issues held at June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Percent of Holdings

AT&T Inc. 21.14%

JP Morgan Chase & Co. 20.33%

Province of Quebec 20.33%

CitiGroup Inc. 20.33%

HSBC Heldings PLC 17.85%
Janus:

Corporate bond issues held al June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Percent of Holdings
Janus Advisor Balanced (JDBAX) 100.00%
Average duration 4.9 ycars

The Wicomico County Frece Library, Inc.

The Library follows Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland, which requires
thal deposits with financial institutions by local boards of cducation and public Libranies be fully
collateralized. Full collateralization is necessary to minimize the risk of loss of a deposit in the event of
the default of a financial institution. In addition, this section of the taw requires that collateral be of the
types specified in the Stale Finance and Procurement Article, Section 6-202 of the Code.

Cash that is not fully insured by the FDIC i1s collateralized with a surety bond program approved
by Maryland’s General Assembly. The Library’s financial institution uses the Excel Capital for its surety
bond coilateral program. Under this program, a surely bond has been issued providing continual
maximum coverage of $500,000, in case of default or failure of the Library’s financial institution.

The Library is a participant in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP). The
MLGIP is duly chartered, administered and subjeet to regulatory oversight by the State of Maryland.
Pennissible investmenis are established by Section 6-222 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.
The MLGIP is rated "AAAmM" by Standard and Poors (their highest rating). The MLGIP, under the
administrative contro) of the Stale Treasurer, has been managed by a single Baltimore based financial
institution, Mercantile- Safe Deposit and Trust Company. An MLGIP Advisory Commitiee of current
participants was formed 10 review, on a quarterly basis, the activities of the Fund and to provide
suggestions to enhance the Pool. The total investment has been recorded at a carrying value $406,569,
which also approximates the fair market value at June 30, 2009. MLGIP and the Library's exposure to
credit, market, or legal risk is not available. '
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RECEIVABLES

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also deferred revenue
recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current
fiscal year deferred revenue for delinquent property taxes receivable reported in the general fund was $496,061.
Receivables do not include various taxes collected by the State of Maryland on behaif of the County, including
income taxes. These amounts are included in Due from Other Governmental Agencies..

Receivables as of year end for the government-wide (inancial statements, including the applicable allowances
for uncollectible accounts as of June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Receivables

Taxes receivable
Noles receivable
Due from other

governments

Other receivables
Gross receivables

Less allowance

for uncollectibles
Nel totlal receivables

Reccivables

Accounts receivable
Due from other

governments

Other receivables
Gross receivables
Less allowance for

uncollectibles

Net total receivables

Governmental
General Granis _
Fund Fund Roads Other Total
$§ 1,746,406 § - 8 - - % 1,746,406
- - - 544 371 544371
5,192,647 2,481,145 - - 7,673,792
888,837 160,314 1,140,154 3,753 2,193,058
7,827,890 2,641,459 1,140,154 548,124 12,157,627
1,204,051 - - - 1,204,051
$ 6,623,839 $§ 2641459 § 1,140,154 548,124 $ 10,953,576
Business-Type
Solid Nursing _
Waste Airport Home Other Total
$ 635,368 3 46,890 % 1,292,927 451,051 § 2426236
- 506,341 - - 506,341
- - - 11,245 11,245
635,368 553,231 1,292,927 462,296 2,943,822
6,865 - 135,000 - 141,865
$ 628,503 § 553,231 % 1,157,927 462,296 $ 2,801,957
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CAPITAL ASSETS

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

Capilal asset activity for the vear ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:

Primary Government:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2009

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES:
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 3 4,557,611 § 1,868,281 § - 3 - 3 6,455,892

Construction in progress 2,069,495 3,331,440 - (2,576,801) 2,824,134
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 6,627,106 5,229,721 - (2,576,801) 9,280,026
Capital assets being depreciated

Infrastructure 169,637,782 171,275 - 2,106,857 171,915,914

Land improvements 1,112,502 14,675 - - 1,127,177

Buildings and improvements 34,668,383 189,416 - 182,400 35,040,199

Machinery, office furniture

and equipment 7,111,386 394,504 (15,249} 287,544 7,778,185

Vehicles 9,933,131 527,381 (273,378) 17,527 10,204,661
Total capital assets being

depreciated 222,463,184 1,297,251 (288,627) 2,594,328 226,066,136
Total capital assets $ 229,090,290 § 6,526,972 § (288,627) § 17,527 § 235,346,162
Accumulated depreciation

Infrastructure $ (118,057,773) $ (3,210,490) § - 5 - % (121,268,263)

Land improvements {452,716) (52,660) - - (505,376)

Buildings and improvements (20,818,649 {1,007,496) - - (21,826,145)

Machinery, office furniture

and equipment (3,960,274) (1,009,687) 13,718 - (4,956,243)

Vehicles (7,912,294) (718,578} 262,964 (17,527) (8,385,435)
Total accumulated depreciation (151,201,706) (5,998,911} 276,682 (17,527) (156,941,462)
Govemmmental activities capital

asscts, net $ 77,888,584 § 528,061 % (11,945) § - § 78,404,700
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2009

Capital asset aetivity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows:
Primary Government (Continued):

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Capital assets nol being depreciated

Land

Construction in progress
Total capital asscis not being

depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Land disposal sites - liner costs
Runways and ramps
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, office fumiture

and equipment

Vchicles

Total capital asscts being
depreciated

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements
Land disposal sites - lincr costs
Runways and ramps
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, office furniture
and equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Business-type activities capital

assels, net

Balance Balance

June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2009

s 5943788 % 174,191 § - ¥ 11,156 6,129,135
927,562 2,643,787 - (924,546) 2,646,803
6,871,350 2,817,978 - {913,390) 8,775,938
3,541,184 - - (11,156) 3,530,028
18,480,245 - - - 18,480,245
43,536,977 2,038,452 - - 45,575,429
27,383,306 141,203 - 924,546 28,449,055
4,106,544 397435 (2,324) - 4,501,655
7,276,091 895917 (755,769) {3.000) 7,413,239
104,324,347 3,473,007 (758,093) 910,390 107,949,651

£ 111,195697 § 6,290,985 § (758,093) § (3,000) 116,725,589
3 (1,790,088) § (95,579) §% - 3 - (1,885,667)
{7,811,369) (1,088,923} - - (8,900,292)
(15,138,913) (2,567,530) - - (17,706,443)
(15,651,369) (589,117) - - (16,240,486)
(2,814,118) (373,39%) 1,945 - (3,185,568)
(4,755,137) (924,564) 748,945 3,000 (4,927,756)
(47,960,994) (5,639,108) 750,890 3,000 (52,846,212)

h) 63,234703 % 651,877 § (7,203) § - 63,879,377
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) -

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES: .
General Government A 404,692
Public Safety 1,636,597
Public Works 3,578,374
Health & Welfare 48,454
Culture & Recreation 330,421

Total depreciation expense — governmental activilies ) 5,998,912

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:

Solid Waste h 1,156,720
Solid Waste — land disposal sites 1,088,923
Salisbury — Ocean City: Wicomico Regional Airport 2,825,259
Nursing Home 158,031
Urban Services 44,746
Convention & Visitors Bureau 27,724
Civic Cenler 337,705
Total depreciation expense — business-iype activities 3 5,639,108
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CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Board of Education of Wicomico County (discretely presented component unit):

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Delelions Transfers June 30, 2009

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES:
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land b 2,024,109 % - 3 - - 3 2,024,109

Conslruction in progress 3,356,763 41,279,043 - (389,165) 44,246,641
Total capital assets nol being

depreciated 5,380,872 41,279,043 - {389,165) 46,270,750
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 180,444 988 3,799 (59,497) 387,667 180,776,957

Furniture and eguiprnent 20,609,444 2,786,131 (1,588,794) 1,498 21,808,279

Vehicles 1,345,426 50,890 {59,633) 1,336,683
Total capital assets being

depreciated 202,399,858 2,840,820 (1,707,924) 389,165 203,921,919
Total eapital assels $ 207,780,730 § 44119863 §  (1,707,924) - § 250,192,669
Less accumulaled depreciation

Buildings and improvements (48,627,441) (4,193,731) 53,594 - (52,767,578)

Furniture and equipment (10,972,403) (2,673,063) 1,244,632 - (12,400,834}

Vehicles {(771,314) {118,239) 59,633 - (829,920)
Total accumulated depreciation (60,371,158) (6,985,033) 1,357,859 - (65,998,332)
Total capital assets, being )

deprectated, net 142,028,700 (4,144,213) (350,065) 389,165 137,923,587
Governmental activities capital

assets, nel 3 147,409,572 § 37,134830 §% (350,065) - % 184,194,337
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets being depreciated

Equipment h3 1,850,460 S 31,219 % {9,673} - 3 1,872,006

Accumulated depreeiation (1,554,780) (41,663) 5,189 - (1,591,254)
Business - iype activities capital

assels, net 3 295,680 § (10,444) § (4,484) - % 280,752
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

CAPITAL ASSETS {Continued)

Board of Education of Wicomico County (discretely presented component unit) (Continued):

Deprecialion expense was charged to the functions/programs of the Board as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES
Administration b 162,214
Instruction Services 6,094 428
Special Education 14,383
Student Personnel Services 1,817
[Health Services 4,541
Student transportation 7,077
Operation of plant and equipment 681,013
Maintenance of plant 19,064
Community Services 495
Depreciation — total § 6,985,032
Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. (discretely presented component unit):
Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deletions June 30, 2009
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITES:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 3 80,820 $ - 5 - 3 80,820
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and tmprovements 2,417,401 : - - 2,417,401
Machinery, office furniture
and cquipment 1,305,470 50,397 (2,523) 1,353,344
Vehicles — bookmobile 178,634 - - 178,634
Library collections 1,789,368 262,850 (255,413) 1,796,845
Total capital assels being
depreciated 5,690,873 313,287 (257,936) 5,746,224
Total capital assets i 5,771,693 § 313,287 $ (257,936) 5 5,827,044
Accumulated depreciation (3,640,827) (393,143 257,936 (3,776,034)
Governmental aclivities capital
assets, net 3 2,130,866 $ (79,856) 3 - ) 2,051,010

Depreciation expense of $393,143 was charged to Library services.
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES - FUND STATEMENTS

Interfund (ransactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or
transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon
consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds™ (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. Advances between funds, as
reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable
governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial
resources.

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide presentation.

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Primary Government

General Grants 3 125,147
Tax Ditches ' 44,759

Urban Services 640

Civic Center 2,290,373

Other 1,036

Fiduciary Funds 2,229

Solid Waste Roads 250,000

3 2,714,184

Due to/from primary government and component unit;

Reccivable Entity Payable Entity Amount

Component unit — Board of Education Primary government — capital projects $ 12,479,588
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
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JUNE 30, 2009

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transfers are used to (1} move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service
from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds in accordance with budgelary authonzations,

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The County issued debt in the form of general obligation bonds, revenue bonds of the Wicomico
County Urban Service Commission, and State loans under the Maryland Indusirial and Commercial
Redevelopment Fund (MICRF), and the Maryland Supplemental Public Schools Construction and Capital
lmprovement Loan programs. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and
enterprise activities. These bonds are reported in the enterprise funds if they are expected to be paid from
enterprise fund revenues. The onginal amount of general obligation bonds issued in prior years was
$128,477,569. During the year, general obligation bonds totaling $20,170,000 were issued for new projects
and general obligation bonds totaling $20,940,000 were issued for refunding.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
government. These bonds generally are issued as 15 — 20 year serial bonds with different amounts of
principal maturing each year. ’

The County's debt is limited to 3.2% of total assessed value of real properly plus 8% of total
assessed value of personal property located within the County. The debt margin permitted at June 30, 2009
amounted to $147,887,629 after considering various debt obligations of $102,022.722 as listed in the
following schedule.

As shown on the combined statement of net assels, total debt of the primary government including
all blended component units is $104,844,676. However, based on information from the County, and as
reported in the audiled {inancial statements of the Wicomico Nursing Home, theré is no recourse to the
County on the morigage payable of that facility. Therefore, the amount of that indebtedness, or
$1,193,537, is removed from total primary government debt below and is also excluded from the County’s
limitation on bonded debt.

The bonded indebtedness of the Wicomico County Urban Services Commission was paid in full in
fiscal year 2009,
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JUNE 30, 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long-term debt of the Primary Government consists of the following as of June 30, 2009:

Interest Beginning Ending Current
Rate Balance Addiuions Reductions Balance Portion
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Bonds payable
General obligation
bonds 2.0-5.9% 87,658,214 § 40,337,887 § (27,700,768) & 100,295,333 § 8,544,404
Other loans payable
Maryland Water
Quality loans 4.89% 152,710 - (35,485) 117,225 37222
State loans 5.530% 184,934 - {25,516) 159,418 26,948
Other loans 4.9-6.1% 14,230 - (3,307) 10,923 3,469
Other loans payable 351,874 - (64,308) 287,566 67,639
Total bonds and toans payable 88,010,088 40,337,887 (27,765,076) 100,582,869 8,612,043
Capital lease obligations 561,597 (309,597) 282,000. Q1111
Governmental activity long-term
tiabilities, primary government 88,601,685 40,337,887 (28,074,673) 100,864,899 8,703,154
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Bonds payable
General obligation
bonds 3.5.5.9% 1,548,362 1,014,510 (1,190,831) 1,372,041 181,173
Revenue bonds 6.0-7.0% 25,000 - (25,000) - -
1,573,362 1,014,510 (1,215,831) 1,372,041 181,173
Other loans payable
Maryiand Water
Quality loans 3.5-4.9% 88,302 - (20,520) 67,782 21,525
Mortgage payable 4.360% 1,310,013 - (116,476) 1,193,537 116,476
1,398,315 - (136,996) 1,261,319 138,001
Total bonds and loans payable 2,971,677 1,014,510 (1,352,827} 2,633.360 319174
Capital lease obligations 1,247,709 678,043 (579,335) 1,346,417 601,142
Business-type activily
long-term liabilities 4,219,386 1,692,553 {1,932,162) 3,979,777 §20,3106
Less: Nursing Home (1,310,013) 116,476 (1,193,537) (116,476)
Business-type activity long-term
liabilities, primary government 2,909,373 1,692,553 (1,815,686) 2,786,240 803,840
Total debt. primary government 91,511,058 42,030,440 (29,890,359) 103,651,139 9,506,994
* Debt not subject to limitation (1,864,3006) (678,043) §13,932 (1,628417) (410,285)
Debt subject to limitation 89,646,752 § 41,352,397 % (28976,427) ¥ 102,022,722 % 9,096,709
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
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JUNE 30, 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LLEASE OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Sumimary of remaining debt service requirements for the yvear(s) ended June 30 are as follows:

Governmenlal Activities Business-tvpe Activities
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010 $ 8,612,043 § 3,951,674 b 202,698 b 48,378
2011 9,211,767 3,539,086 240,929 39,064
2012 9,692,852 3,230,894 261,565 32,129
2013 9,816,521 2,900,043 241,361 22,961
2014 7,015,544 2,601,611 95,465 17,960
2015-2019 32,113,692 9,191,120 333,406 51,777
2020-2024 16,070,480 3,650,619 64,399 2,473
2025-2029 4,025,000 1,636,364 - -
2030-2034 4,025,000 551,826 - -

Total debt service § 100,582,899 £ 31,253,237 § 1,439,823 § 214742

The County has entered into leases for the acquisition of various cquipment which transfers
ownership at the end of the lease. Accordingly, the present value of the future minimuin lease payments
and the related assets has been recorded in the appropriate funds. Amortization of those assets is included
with depreciation expense.

FFuture minimum lease payments under capital leases are as {ollows;

Primary Government

General Solid Wasle
Year ending Long-Term Landfill

June 30 Debt Enterprise Fund
20190 i 100,179 3 644,100
2011 100,179 350,281
2012 100,170 189,141
2013 - 174,007
2014 - 75,199
300,510 1,432,728
Amounts represeniing interest (18,510) (86,311)

Present valuc of future minimum

¥ 282,000 b 1,346,417
lease payments
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JUNE 30, 2009

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Long-term debt of the Board of Education consists of the following:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Accrued compensated
absences $ 1,910,460 $ 1,240,892 b 247,567 § 2,903,785 ¥ 245947
Capital leases 3,363,600 1,566,000 1,898,132 3,031,468 1,544,089
Total § 5,274,060 ¥ 2,806,892 N 2,145,699 ¥ 5,935,253 $ 1,790,036

The Board of Education has entered into several |ease agreements as lessee for financing the
acquisition of computers, sofiware and several vehicles. These lease agreements qualily as a capital lease
for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments as ol the date of their inception,

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows:

Year Ending Board of
June 30 Education
2010 S 1,657,189
2011 1,144,439
2012 410,372
3,212,000
Amounts representing interest (180,532)
Present vatue of future minimum lease payments § 3,031,468

HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVES

The County entered into a public entities health care consortium with the Board of Education and
the City of Salisbury during fiscal year 2003. The purposec of this consortium is to reduce administrative
expenses. [Each entity has its premium rates adjusted based on its experience and benefits. Beginning in
July 2002, each entity agreed to fund a rate stabilization reserve equal 1o 10% of average annual premiums.
The agreement was originally effective through the period ended August 31, 2005 and is currently extended
on an annual basis. Each year the health care provider produces an annual setilement for all entities. If
there is an expericnee loss, funding will come from the entities based on their individual experience.
Settlement among the group wiil occur within four months afier August 31* each year.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the health care insurance reserve had the following activity:

Balance at July 1, 2008 ) 1,282,764
Interest earmned (net of expenditures) 20,090
Balance at June 30, 2009 b 1,302,854
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HEALTH INSURANCE RESERVES (Continued)

The consortium’s contract with its health insurance carrier requires that actual incurred claims and
expenses be compared to actual premiums paid to determine whether a deposit premium deficit has becn
incurred each year. Under the contract, the health insurance carrier can only require payment against the
deficit of up to 5% of the actual monthly premiums paid in the current fiscal year. The health insurance
contract is based on a fiscal year ol September 1* through August 31*. For the period ended August 31,
2008, the County's share of lhe consortium’s settiement was a surplus of $296,538. By contract, these
proceeds can only be used for health care related expenditures. The County chose to use the settlement 10
fund other post retirement employee benefits for health care.

Board of Education of Wicomico County

The Board entered into a public entities health care consortium with the City of Salisbury and
Wicomico County Council during fiscal year 2003. The purpose of this consorlium is lo reduce
administrative expenses. Each enlily has its premium rates adjusted based on its expenience and benefits.
Beginning in July 2002, each entity agreed to fund a rate stabilization reserve equal to 10% of average
annual premiums. The agreement was originally effective through the peried ended August 31, 2005 and is
currently extended on an annual basis. Each vyear the health care provider will produce an annual
settlement for all entities. If there 1s an experience loss, funding will come from the entities based on their
individual experience. Settlement among the group will occur within four months after August 31% each
year.

For the year ended June 30, 2009, the hecalth care insurance reserve had the following activity:

Balance at July 1, 2008 b - 5,854,309
Subsidy for rate increase (1,173,461)
Positive sctilement — 2008 2,942,357
Interest earned (net of expenditures) 87,411
Other - transfer adjustment 58,720
Balance at June 30, 2009 $ 7,769,336

The consoriium’s contract with its health insurance carrier reguires that actual incurred claims and
expenses be compared 1o actual premiums paid to determine whether a deposit premium deficit has been
incurred each year. Under the contract, the health insurance carrier can only require payment against the
deficit of up to 5% of the actual monthly premiums paid in the current fiscal year. The health insurance
contract is based on a fiscal year ol September 1° through August 31*. For the period ended August 31,
2008, the Beard’s share of the censortium’s seitlement was a surplus of $2,942,357 which was recognized
as an other finaneing souree during the year ended June 30, 2009,
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OTHER LIABILITY

In Deccmber, 2001, the Wicomico County Urban Services Commission and Wicomico County
entered into an agreement with the City of Fruitland for the purpose of providing water and/or sewer
services to areas designated as the service area for the City of Fruitland in the “Wicomico County
Comprehensive Water and Sewer Plan”. Under this agreement, the City of Fruitland agrees to construct
and maintain all lines and charge 150% of their current City rate for services, with 2% of the gross revenue
being remitled to the Commission by the City. As of June 30, 2009 there were no charges for services
under this agreement. As part of the agrecment, the County paid the City of Fruitland $1,800,000 for
expansion and upgrade of the City’s existing waler trealment and wastewater (reatment plant and
contracted to pay the City an amount equal (o a portion of the City’s debt on these facilities at the time of
the contract, or $1,678,234 plus interest. This payment will be made, in installments, over the existing life
of the current loans. Total payment in the current year for principal and interest was $179,136. The
balance due as of June 30, 2009 was $868,449.

ARBITRAGE PAYABLE

Wicomico County's arbitrage consultant has advised that as of June 30, 2009, there is a small
potential liability of $2,930 that may have 10 be paid lo the federal government during fiseal year 2010,
depending on inlerest rates and disbursement of bond proceeds. The County has sufficient funds in the
arbitrage reserve Lo cover this possible payment. Potential rebate liabilities exist for fiscal years 2011 and
beyond; however, these liabilities are subject to change as the County spends down its bond proceeds for
the projects that were bonded.

ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The County accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associaled employee-related
costs when earned or estimaied 10 be carned by the employee. The accrual of vacation leave is based upon
individual salary rates in effect as of June 30 and is capped at 45 days. The accrual of sick leave is based
on paymeni upon retirement al their current hourly rate for each unused sick leave day up 1o a total of 260
hours. Unused vacation and sick leave will be liquidated by the respective government and enterprisc
funds where the currenl employec costs are accounted for.

Changes in accrued compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2009 are as {ollows:

June 30, 2008 Increase Junc 30, 2009

Primary government:
Governmenlal activities $ 3,003,958 h) 536,501 £ 3,600,459
Business-type activities 332,236 32,383 364,619
Total primary government § 3,396,194 3 568,884 $ 3,965,078
June 30, 2008 Increase June 30, 2009

Component units:

Board of Education of Wicomico Co. 1,910,460 993 325 2,903,785
Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. 154,866 8,985 163,851
Total component units $ 2,065,326 $ 1,002,310 $ 3,067,636

58



WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' JUNE 30, 2009

PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Plan for the Emplovees of Wicomico County, Maryland

Plan Description

The County, through the authority of the County Commissioners, providcs penston and retirement
benefits through a single employer public employee retirement system (the “County Plan”) for its general
and public safety employees who have reached the age of 18 and have agreed to make a contribution. The
County Plan has a group pension disbursement conlract with the Aetna Life Insurance Company and an
investment manager contract with Croft-Leominster, Inc. A Board of Trustees holds title to the assets of
the plan and controls the operation and record keeping of the trust.

Normal retirement is the earlier of a participant’s 25" anniversary or, the later of (1) a participant’s
55" birthday and (2) 5 years of service. Early retirement and disability benefits are provided. Normal form
of pension ts a modified cash refund annuity. Fees paid by the plan for administration expense for the year
ended June 30, 2009 were $128,796,

Membership in the pension plan is comprised of the following for the plan vear beginning July 1,

2008.
Active eligible 647
Terminated with vested rights 26
Retired 113
786

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the County are established and may be
amended by the County. Employecs who are at least 21 years of age, have not attained the age of 65, and
have successfully compleled their initial probationary period are required to parlicipate in the County Plan
as a condition of their employment and 1o make contributions amounting to 5.625% of earnings. A
participant is 100% vested after five years of service. The County is required to contribule an actuarially
determined amount; for the vear ended June 30, 2009 that amount was $2,076,253,

Annual Pension Cost and Contribution

The County’s annual pension cost {required contribution) was $2,076,253 and the actual
contribution was $3,419 357,
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Retirement Plan for the Employees of Wicomico County. Marvland (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Contribution (Continued)

The annual required contnbution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2008
acluarial valuation using the projected unit credit (effective July 1, 2007). Prior to July 1, 2007 the
actuarial valuation used the frozen entry age normal (fresh start as of July 1, 1995). The actuarial
assumptions include a 7.75% investmcent rate of return as of July 1, 2008 and 8% prior to July 1, 2007, and
a 1% administrative expense and projected salary increase of 5% Effective July 1, 2009 the valuation will
include no projected salary increase for three years, 1% for the fourth year, and 2.5% ongoing. The
assumption for retirement age will increase 10 2 years after the earliest age eligible for full benefits as of
July 1, 2009, based on experience and retirement trends.

The changes in assumptions for the year ending June 30, 2010, were made based on revised
projections made by County management in light of economic conditions and expected County revenues
and expenditures over the next five years.

The actuarial value of assels was dclcrmincd using asset information as of June 30, 2009, provided
by the plan sponsors and designees at market value. The changes in fiduciary net assets are for the year
ended June 30, 2009 and on the cash basis.

The assumptions do not include other post-retirement benefits. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The amortization

period used at June 30, 2008 was twenty-seven years.

Three-Year Trend Information

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual Annual Pension Net
Year Pension Cost Penston
Ending Cosl Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2007 2,007,397 188.2% -
June 30, 2008 1,924,914 188.5% -
June 30, 2009 2,076,253 164.7% -

A schedule of Pension Plan Funding Progress is included under Required Supplementary
Information.

The Plan does not issue separate financial statements.
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Retirement Plan for Certain Emplovees of Wicomico County, Maryland Participaling in the
Maryland State Emplovees’ Retirement System

When the County implemented its present pension program, a certain number of its employees who
were covered by the Employees' Retirement and Pension System, a plan administered by the State of
Marvland, elected to remain in the State plan. The County's contribution (o the State plan consists of two
elements. a current contribution equal to 9.6% of the employee's earnings (subject to certain limitations
with respect to overtime)} and a contribution to cover the unfunded accrued liability for the plan. In fiscal
year 2009, the County's total contribution amounted to $34,279 which includes a portion sufficient to
amortize the unfunded accrued liability by the vear 2020.

The Employees' Retirement System of the State of Maryland was established on October 1, 1941
and is administered in accordance with Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the purpose of
providing retirement allowances and other benefits to State employees and the employees of participating
municipal corperations. In addition, on January 1, 1980, the Employees’ Pension System of the State of
Maryland was established. Employees hired on or after January 1, 1980 become members of the
Employees' Pension Systemn. Existing members of the Employees' Retirement System, unless exempted by
law, have the option of remaining in the Employees' Retirement System or transferring to the Employees’
Pension System,

The significant plan benefits and policies of the Maryland State Employees' Retirement System
parallel that of the Maryland State Teachers' Retirement System, are disclosed below.

Pension Plans for the Board of Education of Wicomico County

‘Substantially all of the Board's employees are covered by one of three pension plans - the Teachers'
Retirement System, the Teachers' Pension System or the Retirement Plan for Employees of the Board of
Education of Wicomico County.

General Plan Policies: Teachers' Retirement System and the Teachers Pension System

Teachers and related occupations are covered by the Teachers' Retirement System or the Teachers'
Pension System of the State of Maryland, both of which are cost-sharing, multiple employer public
employee retirement systems. Except for restricted programs as described below, the State pays virtually all
the employer's annual contribution. Total contributions paid by the State to the Plan for the vear ended June
30, 2009 were $10,390,453. For teachers and other employees whose retirement expense is reimbursed
from Federal Restricted Grants, the Board remits monthly payments to the State which represents the
amount of retirement expense charged to these restricted programs. The Board has no contingent liability
for funding deficits in the system should such occur.
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension Plans for the Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

General Plan Policies: Teachers' Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension System {Continued)

The contribution and percentage of contribution for the past three years are as follows:

Year
Ended Annual Percentage
June 30 Pension Cosl Contributed
2007 5 524381 100%
2008 3 634,040 100%
2009 k) 647,132 100%

The Teachers’ Retirement System of the Staie of Maryland was established on August 1, 1927, and
1s administered in accordance with Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the purpose of
providing retiremcnt allowances and other benefits to teachers in the State, In addition, on January 1, 1980,
the Teachers' Pension System of the State of Maryland was established. In this regard, teachers hired on or
after January 1, 1980, become members of the Teachers' Pension System, unless they elect 1o join an
optional retirement program. Existing members of the Teachers' Retirement Systemn have the option of
remaining in the Teachers’ Retirement System or transferring to the Teachers' Pension System,

Significant Plan Benefits and Policies

The following is a general description of the significant plan henefits and related contribution
requirements for the Teachers' Retirement Systern and the Teachers' Pension System:

Teachers' Retirement System

A. Retirement Benefits

A member may rctire with full benefits afier attaining the age of 60, or after completing 30 years of
creditable service regardless of age. The annual retirement allowance is equal lo 1/55 of a
member's average {inal compensation (i.e., average of the member's three highest years of annual
earnable compensation) multiplied by the number of vears of creditable service, A member may
retire with reduced benefits after completing 25 vears of creditable service regardiess of age.

B. Vested Allowance

A member terminating emploviment before attaining retirement age but after completing 5 vears of
creditable service becomes eligible for a vested retirement allowance, provided the member lives 1o
the age of 60 and does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions. Members terminating
employment before attaining retirement age and before completing § vears of creditable service are
refunded their accumulaled contributions plus earned interest. '
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Conlinued)

Pension Plans for the Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

Teachers' Retirement System {Continued)

C. Employee and Employer Contributions

Members of the Teachers' Retirement Syslems are required to contribute to the systems a fixed
percentage of their regular salaries and wages {e.g., 7% or 5%, depending on the allowance option
selected). The contributions are deducted from each member's salary and wage paymenis and are
rermtted to the sysiems on a regular, periodic basis.

The State of Maryland makes virtually all of the non-employec contributions in amounts required
by State statutes,

Teachers' Pension Svstems

A. Retirement Benelits

A member may retire with full benefits after completing 30 years of eligibility service regardless of
age, or at age 62 or older with specified years of creditable service. On retircment from service, a
mermber shall receive an annual service retirement allowance, The annual retirement allowance is
equal to 1.2% of average compensation for the three highest consecutive years as an employee for
years of creditable service before June 30, 1998 and 1.8% of average compensation for the three
highest years of creditable service afler June 30, 1998,

B. Vested Allowance

A member terminating employment before attaining retirement age, but afier completing 5 years of
eligibility service, becomes eligible for a vested retirement allowance provided the member lives to
age 62. Members terminating employment before attaining retirement age and before completing 5
years of eligibility service are refunded their accumulated contributions plus earned interest.

C. Employee and Employer Contributions

Members of the Teachers' Pension Systems are required to contribule to the systems 4% of their
regular salanies and wages up to the social security wage base in the year ending June 30, 2009.
The contributions are deducted {rom each member's salary and wage payments and are remitted to

the systems on a regular, periodic basis.

The State of Maryland makes virtually all of the non-employee contributions in amounts required
by State statutes.
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

A

Pension Plans for the Board of Education of Wicomico County {Continued)

Employer's Pavroll Covered Under the Plan

The employer's payroli for the year ended June 30, 2009 and payroll covered under the Teachers
Retirement and Pension Systems is as follows:

Total payroll S 113,142.875
Payroll covered under the plans § 94,044,621

Additional information and ten year historical trend informatien can be obtained from the
separately issued State Retiremenlt and Pension system of Maryland Annual Financial Report.

Retirement Plan For Emplovees At The Board of Education of Wicomico County

General Plan Policies

Other employees not covered by the Tcachers Retirement System or the Teachers Pension System
of Maryland are covered by the Retircment Plan for Employees at the Board of Education of
Wicomico County, a defined benefit plan. Effective January 1, 1994, this plan was merged with the
Wicomico Countly plan 1o become the retirement plan for employees of Wicomico County and the
Board of Education of Wicemice County. Plan provisions remained relatively unchanged.

Significant Plan Benefits and Policies

The following is a summary of significant plan benefits and policies:
A.  Eligibility - Empleyees are eligible if they are at least 18 years of age.

B. Employee Contributions - Each year an employee is required to contribute 2% of eamings up
to $4,800, plus 4% of camings in cxcess of $4,800. Interest is credited at 5% per year.

C. Retirement:

a. Normal retirement 1s available for employees who are age 65 and over and have obtained 5
years of service.

b. Early retirement 1s available for employees with five vears or more experience and who are
ape 55 or older and are within 10 years ¢f normal retirement date.
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INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A summary of interfund transfers follows:

Convention
General Capital Solid & Visitors Civic
Fund + Grants Projects Roads Recreation Waste Bureau Center Total

General Fund 3 43392 % 3 208,234 §  (177,755) § (47,102) % 516,969 % 543,738
Grants (43,392) (40,000} (83,392)
Capital Projects {45,055) 311,123 266,068
Roads (208.234) (208,234)
Recreation 177,755 40,000 12,000 13,900 243,655
Solid Waste 47,102 45,055 92,157
Convention &

Visitors Burcau (12,000) (19,334) (31,334)
Civic Center (516,969) (311,123) {13,900) 19,334 (822,658)
Total (543,738) % 83,392 3 (266,068) § 208,234 & (243,655) § (92,157) % 31334 822,658 3% -
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Retirement Plan For Employees At The Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

Significant Plan Benefits and Policies (Continued)

D. Benefit at Relirement:

a. For normal retirement, the member will receive a benefit equal to 1 2/3 % of final average
earnings times the years and months of service afier age 18, '

b. Early retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as the normal retirement
benefits bul based on service and salary accrued or earned up to date of early retirernent
and reduced by the appropriate early retirement factors.

E. Vesting - A participant is 100% vested after five years of continuous service with the
employer.

Emplovee's Payroll Covered Under the Plan

The employee’s payroll for the vear ended June 30, 2009 and payroll covered under the Plan is as
follows:

Total payroll § 113,142,875
Payroll covered under the plans ) 6,379,286

The Board's contribution and percentage of contribution are as follows:

Annual

Year Ended Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution Contributed
1998 $ 157,937 100%
1999 $ 101,350 100%
2000 I 142,195 100%
2001 ¥ 242949 100%
2002 3 254,142 100%
2003 § 418,903 89%
2004 § 479,018 80%
2005 $ 460,582 92%
2006 ¥ 481,038 98%
2007 $ 446,222 100%
2008 § 513,514 123%
2009 § 529,564 102%
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Retirement Plan for Employees At The Board of Edueation of Wicomice County (Continued)

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
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Emplover's Payroll Covered Under the Plan {Continued)

The information presenled in the required supplemenlary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuations ai the dates indicated. Additional informaltion as of the latest actuarial valuation

follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

July 1, 2008
Frozen Initial Entry Age
Level Percent

Remaining amortization period 30 Years
Asset valuation method Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.75%
Projecled salary mcreases 4.50%
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial UAAL
Accrued Unfunded asa
Acluarial Actuarial Liability AAL Funded percentage
Valuation Value of (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Covered of covered
Date Assets (a) Entry Age (b) {b-a) (a/b) Payroll (c) Payroll (b-a)/c
7/1/1997 8,854,185 § 8597270 % {256,915) 102.99% § 3,944,900 {6.51%)
7/1/1998 9,544 099 8,519,778 (1,024,321) 112.02% 47225210 (24.24%)
7/1/1999 9,832,269 9,042,973 (789,296) 108.73% 4725072 (16.70%)
7/1/2000 9,801,306 9,610,680 {190,626) 101.98% 4,831,638 {3.95%)
7/172000 10,513,887 10,125,989 {387,898) 103.83% 5,418,831 {7.16%)
77172002 9,889,757 10,932,388 1,042,631 90.46% 5,677,963 18.36%
7/1/2003 10,066,394 11,637,837 1,571,443 86.50% 5,951,447 26.40%
7/1/2004 11,230,846 12,556,267 1,325,421 289.44% 6,353,085 20.86%
7/1/2005 12,113,245 13,883 815 1,770,570 87.25% 6,708,737 26.39%
71172006 13,375,529 14,610,973 1,235,444 91.54% 7,034,996 17.56%
7/1/2007 15,284,191 15,820,248 536,055 96.61% 7,538,827 7.11%
7/1/2008 15,642 697 16,870,084 1,227,387 92.72% 8,484 889 14.47%
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Retirement Plan For Employees At The Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The Board's annual pension cost and net pension asset for the current year are as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 481,181
Adjustment to annual required contribution 35,562
Annual pension cost , 516,743
Contributions made 529,564
Net pension asset at end of year $ (12,821)

401(a) Matching Plan

Effective July 1, 2001, the Board implemented a defined contribution plan. The employer’s
contribution is determined annually by the Board and is based on cligible participants’ contributions to
the 403(b) plan. Eligible employees must be 18 years of age and become fully vested alter five years of
service. During the year ended June 30, 2009, there were 1,368 eligible participants for whom the Board
contributed a total of $439,318.

Pension Plan for the Employees of the Wicomico County Free Library, Inc.

General Plan Policies

All full-time personnel employed in a Library position participate in the Teachers’ Retirement
System or the Teachers’ Pension System of the State of Maryland which are cost-sharing multiple
employer public retirement funds. The State funds substantially all the employer’s annual contributions.
The Library has no contingent liability for funding deficils in the system should they occur.

Certain on-behalf payments are made by the Siate of Maryland that represents contributions to a
pension plan for which the employer government is not legally responsible. The total of these on-behalf
payments, which are recorded by the Library as revenues and expenditures, was $123,950 for the year
ended June 30, 2009,

All other eligible permanent employees excluded above are enrolled in the Maryland State
Emplovees’ Retirement System or the Employees’ Pension System.

The Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Maryland was established on July 27, 1927 and
i1s adminisiered in accordance with Article 738 of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the purpose of
providing retirement allowances and other benefits Lo teachers in the State. In addilion, on January 1,
1980, the Teachers' Pension System of the State of Maryland was established. Teachers hired on or after
January 1, 1980 become members of the Teachers' Pension System, unless they elect to join an optional
retirement program. Existing members of the Teachers' Retirement System have the option of remaining
in the Teachers' Retirement Sysiem or transferring to the Teachers’ Pension System.
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension Plan for the Emplovees of the Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. (Continued)

General Plan Policies {Continued)

The Employees' Retirement System of the State of Maryland was established on October 1, 1941
and is administered in accordance with Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland for the purpose of
providing retirement allowances and other benefits to State employees and the employees of participating
municipal corporations. In addition, on January 1, 1980, the Employees’ Pension System of the Siate of
Maryland was established. Employees hired on or after January 1, 1980 become members of the
Employees' Pension System. Existing members of the Employees' Retirement System, unless exempted
by law, have the option of remaining in the Employees' Retirement System or transferring to the
Employees' Pension System.

Emplovees' and Teachers’ Retirement Systems

The following is a general description of the significant plan benefits available to the members of
the Employees’ and Teachers' Retirement System.

A. Retirement Benefits

A member may retire with full benefits after attaining the age of 60, or after completing 30 years
of creditable service regardless of age. The annual retirement allowance is equal to 1/45th of a
member's average final compensation {i.e., average of the member's three highest years of
creditable service.) multiplied by the number of years of accumulated credible service, up to 25
years. A member may retire with reduced benefits after completing 25 vears of creditable service
regardless of age.

BB. Vested Allowance

A member terminating employment before attaining retirement age but after completing five
vears of creditable service becomes eligible for a vested retirement allowance, provided the
member lives to the age of 60 and does not withdraw his or her accumulated contributions.
Members terminating employment before attaining retirement age and before completing five
years of creditable service are refunded their accumulated contributions plus carned interest.

C. Employce and Employer Contributions
Meinbers of the Employees' and Teachers' Retirement Systemns are required to contribute to the
systems a fixed percentage of their regular salaries and wages (e.g., 7%). The contributions are

deducted from each member's salary and wage payments and are remitted to the systems on a
regular, periodic basis,
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PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension Plan for the Emplovees of the Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. (Continued)

Employees' and Teachers' Pension Systems

The following is a general description of the significant plan benefits available to the members of
the Employees' and Teachers’ Pension Systems, and the related contribution requirements:

A. Retirement Benefits

A member may retire with full benefils after completing 30 years of creditable service regardiess
of age, or at age 62 or older with specified years of creditable service. On retirement from service,
a member shall receive an annual service reliremernt allowance based on the member's average
final compensation (i.e., average annual earnable compensation during any three consecutive
years that provide the highest average eamable compensation} and years of creditable service
with a provision for additional benefits for compensation earned in exccss of the Social Security
“wage base. A member may retire with reduced bencfits after attaining age 55 and completing 15
years of eligibility service.

B. Vested Allowance

A member terminating employment before attaining retirement age, but after completing 5 years
of eligibility service, becomes eligible for a vested retirement allowance provided the member
lives to age 62. Members temminating employment before altaining retirement age and before
completing 5 years of eligibility service are refunded their accumulated contributions plus earned
interest.

C. Employee and Employer Contributions

Members of the Employees' and Teachers' Pension Syslems are required lo contribute o the
Systems 2% of their regular salaries and wages which exceed the Social Security wage base. The
contributions are deducted from each member's salary and wage payments and are remitted to the
Systems on a regular, periodic basis. '

The State of Maryland makes virtually all of the non-emplovee contributions in amounts required
by State statutes.

Further information on the pension plans can be found in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State Retirement and Pension System of Maryland. Copies can be oblained by contacting
the State Retirement and Pension System of Maryland, 120 East Baltimore Street, Baltimore, Maryland
21201-2363.
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DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The County offers certain employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, The plan, available 1o all eligible County employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The County matches 20%. The match paid in 2009 was
$111,026. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death,
or unforeseeable emergency. The deferred amounts are invested in various annuity contracts. All amounts
of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all
income atiributable to those amounts, property, or rights are solely the propery and rights of the deferred
compensation plan participants. The County has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the
duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 32, adopled by the County in 1998, the plan's assets are not reported on the statement of
net assets of the County.

DEATH BENEFITS

The County provides a death benefit equivalent to a deceased employee's current annual salary,
regardless of length of service. Expenditures for death benefits are funded from a combination of the
reservation of fund balance and insurance.

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the County provides post-retirement health
care benefits as approved by the County Council (o all retirees (and their dependents) who are eligible to
retire under the County Pension System. The post-retirement health care bene{it is also offered (o certain
County employees who retire under the State Relirement System, are at the age (o receive Social Securily
benefits and have a least ten years service with the County (public safety employees are eligible at age 60
with nine years service). The employee may retire and retain their health insurance coverage which
includes medical, prescription, dental and vision while paying the same percentage of coniract cost as
while employed which as of June 30, 2009 was 15% of employee cost and 25% of dependant coverage.

For the year ended June 30, 2009 therc were 140 participants recciving post-retirement health
care benefits at a direci cost to the County of §737,856.

In July 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45 (“GASB 45"), Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postrctirement Benefits Other Than Pensions (“OPEB™). This statement
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of other postretirement benefits
expenses/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures and required supplemen:iary
information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers. 1t is permissible Lo
combine the RSI with the note disclosures. The provisions of this Statement are effective for the County
for periods beginning after December 15, 2007 (fiscal year 2009). The County chose to implement early
in {iscal year 2008.
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan for the Emplovees of Wicomico County, Maryland

Plan Description

During the year ended June 30, 2007, Wicomico County and the Board of Education jointly set
up the ‘Retiree Health Insurance Plan Trust of the Board of Education of Wicomico County and
Wicomico County’ (“the trust”). A Board of Trustees (“the Board”) oversees the trust,

The plan is an agent multiple-employer plan with combined administrative functions for
efficiency and each agent employer remains responsible for financing benefits of its own individual plan,
Each agent employer also remains individually responsible for its own separate actuarial valuations, and
expenses and obligations are measured like those of sole employers. The assets of the two entities are
segregated within the trust,

The assets of the trust are managed by an investment manager, Croft-Leominster, Inc., under a
formal investment policy. The Board meets quarterly to review investment performance. The investment
manager provides a fiscal year performance report to the Board. Questions regarding performance should
be directed to the Plan Administrator. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy

During the year ended June 30, 2008, Wicomico County changed its method of accounting for
post-employment benefits other than pensions by adopting GASB 45. This statement was implemented
prospectively.

Wicomico County has chosen to continue to pay current retiree medical payments from the
General Fund. Therefore, the trust will fund each year, to the extent appropriated, the Actuarially
Required Contribution (“ARC™).

The County contracted for a preliminary actuarial study that determined the ARC for fiscal year
2009 was §1,882,000. The County contributed approximately 81%of the full ARC to the trust, or
$1,525,130 which included a health care rebate of $296,538.
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

A Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Pian for the Employees of Wicomico County, Maryland

{Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The County’s OPEB cost (expense) is the ARC, which represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial

liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the

components of the County’s annual OPEB cost for the years 2008 and 2009, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB Obligation.

Net OPEB asset at beginning of year
Annual Required Contribution
Expense (Conuributions Made)

' Subtotal Net OPEB Asset
Interest on Beginning Net OPEB Asset
Adjustment to ARC

TOTAL NET OPEB ASSET AT END OF YEAR

2008 2009
$ _ (1,113,706)
2,067,000 1,882,000
(3,180,706) (2,262,986)
(1,113,706) (1,494,692)

. (83,528)

- 126,169

S (1,113,706) (1,452,051)

The annual OPEB Cost and Nelt OPEB Obligation {Asset) 1s determined on the basis of annual
contributions. Therefore, the $1,000,000 prefunding in fiscal year 2007 is not included in this schedule.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Based on an actuarial study performed in January 2006, as of July 1, 2005, the most recent
complete actuarial date, the plan was 0% funded. At the time the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for
benefits was $21,406,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $0 resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of 521,406,000, As of June 30, 2009, the preliminary AAL was $26,447,400
and the actuarial value of assets based on current market value was $5,118,475,

In fiscal year 2007 the County prefunded $1,000,000 although it did not implement GASB 45. In
fiscal year 2008 the County fully funded the ARC of $2,067,000 plus $1,113,706 in health care rebates.
In fiscal year 2009, the County funded $1,525,130, including a health carc rebate of $296,538.

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities
Actuarial Value of plan assets
Unfunded AAL
Funded ratio as of actuarial value daies
Covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

June 30, 2008

June 30, 2009
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23,802,450 i 26,447,400
4,178,749 5,118,475
19,623,701 i 21,328,925
17.60% 19.40%
32,760,937 ¥ 32,722,462
59.59% 65.20%
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

A Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan for the Emplovees of Wicomico County, Maryland

{Conlinued)

Schedule of Funding Progress (Continued}

Actuarial assumptions of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumplions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funding status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information but
included in the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan asseis 1s increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits,

Summary of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on a subslantive plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members and includes the type of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point, and any known changes in the plan going forward. The actuarial mcthods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in the
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the January 2006 actuarnial valvation and the June 30, 2009 preliminary updated AAL, the
projected unit credit funding method was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment return
for discounted labilities of 7.5%. Monality calculations were done using the RPA 2000 Sex Distinct
method, turnover T3, and a marriage rate of 60% for pre-65 and 40% of post-65. Aging factors were
applied to premium equivalencies, and the trend rate was 12% (2006) to 5% (2013). Assumptions were
made about the probability of retirement and the probability of elecling coverage of:

Probability of Probability of
Retirement Electing Coverage
First year of eligtbility 25% 75%
Subsequent vear of eligibility 25% 75%
Age 62 100% 75%
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

A Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan for the Employees of Wicomico County, Maryland
{Conlinued)

Retiree Subsidy

The County has an implied subsidy for its retiree health care costs as both current employees and
retirees pay the same rate, and retiree health care costs are higher. The employer’s share of the current
coverage cost for each group should be calculated based on the claims cost, or age-adjusted premiums for
that group. The employer’s share for retiree benefits is the difference belween claims costs or age-
adjusted premiums for retirecs and the amount contributed by retirees — i.¢., the retiree subsidy.

The County’s implicit subsidy for retiree premiums is $608,738.

579 Active 140

Employees Retirces Total
Total age adjusted premiums by 4,839,971 ) 885,600 h 5,725,571
Less: member contributions - (276,862) (276,862)
Employer retiree subsidy b 4,839,971 $ 608,738 L) 5,448,709

Actuarial Certification

The County has on record a certification for the Plan's actuary, CBIZ, that no material changes
with respect to OPEB benefits and the census of covered participants have occurred, which would
preclude the County from using the initial valuation for the second year of the permitied biennial cycle.
An updated valuation is underway and associaled obligations will be disclosed in fiscal year 2010. The
Actuary further stipulates that the methods and assumptions used in the original valuation met the
requirements at the American Academy of Actuaries Actuarial Standards of Practice (ASOP) No. 4.

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan For Emplovees At The Board of Education of
Wicomico County

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Board of Education for Wicomico Ceounty changed its
methed of accounting for post-employment benefiis other than pensions by adopting Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other than Pensions. This stalement was implemented
prospectively.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Board funded 55% of the individual health care
insurance costs for retirees who were qualified to retire on or after July 17, 2007 based on the rules of
their respective pension; and who had accumulated at least 10 years of scrvice with the Board prior to
their retirement. The Board previously funded 55% of the individual health care insurance costs for
retirees who had accumulated at least 15 years of service with the Board prier 1o their retirement (before
July 17, 2007). Approximately 640 retirees, who have worked for at least five years are eligible to
participate in the post-retirement benefit program.
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan For Emplovees At The Board of Education of
Wicomico County (Continued)

Plan Description

During the year ended June 30, 2007, Wicomico County and the Board of Education jointly set
up the “Retiree Health Insurance Plan Trust of the Board of Education of Wicomico County and
Wicomice County™ (“the trust”™). A Board of Trustecs oversees the trust.

The Plan is an agent multiple-employer plan with combined administrative functions for
cfficiency and cach agent employer remains responsible for financing benefits of its own individual plan.
Each agent employer also remains individually responsible for its own separate actuarial valuations, and
expenses and obligations are measured like those of sole employers. The assets of the two entities are
segregated within the trust,

The plan provides medical, prescription, dental, and vision benefils to cligible retirees and their
spouse and dependents, if any.

Funding Policy

The required contribution is based on projecied pay-as-you-go financing requirements with an
additional amount 1o pre-fund benefits as determined annually. For the current fiscal year, the Board
contributed $3.373 million to the plan, including $1.751 mitlion for current claim costs (approximately
55% of total premiums); an additional $1.558 million (o pre-fund benefits and an estimaled retiree
subsidy of $64,000. Plan members receiving benefits contributed approximately 45% of the total! claim
costs premiums, through their required contributions of $247 per month for retirees-only coverage (if
under 65), $200 per month for retirees-only coverage (if 65 or older) and $969 for retiree and spouse
coverage. -

Annual OPEB Cest and Net OPEB Obligation

The Board’s annual other post-retirement benefit (OPEB) cost {expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 vears. '
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan For Emplovees At The Board of Education of

Wicomico County (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Asset (Continued)

The following table shows the components of the Board’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the

amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Board’s net OPEB Asset.

Annual Required Contribution

Interest on Net OPEB Assel

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution
Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions Made
Decrease in Net OPEB Asset

Net OPEB Asset at Beginning Of Year

NET OPEB ASSET AT END OF YEAR

The Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the

net OPEB asset for 2009 was as follows:

$ 2,601,000

(30,750)
43,200

2,613,450
(3,373,000)

(759,550)
(410,000)

$ (1,169,550)

Percentage
of Annual Net OPEB
Fiscal Annual OPEB Cost Obligation
Year Ended OPLB Cost Contributed (Asset)
6/30/07 $ 2,432,000 70.80% $ 709,000
6/30/08 2,594,000 143.10% (410,000)
6/30/09 2,613,450 129.06% (1,169,550)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July T, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 6.4% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $34,046,000 and the actuarial value of assets was $2,181,000

resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $31,865,000.
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POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued)

Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits Plan For Emplovees At The Board of Education of
Wicomico County (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

In fiscal years 2007 and 2008 the Board prefunded $2,181,000. In fiscal year 2009, the Board
made a coniribution of $1,538,000, plus $64,000 in retiree subsidies.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurtence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of berefits for financial reporting purposes are based on a substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefit costs between the emplover and the
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in the actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assels, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is
a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer’s own
investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan assets at the valuation date, and an annual
healihcare cost trend rate of 8% initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% afier three
years. The acluarial value of assels was determined using a standard balanced portfolic expectation for
retirement plan asset returns. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of payrell on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2008 was 30 years.
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LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE COST

State and Federal laws and regulations require the County to place a {inal cover on its landfill site
when it stops accepling waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for
thirly years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the
date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports a portion of these closure and post closure
care costs'as an operating expense in each penod based on landfill capacity used as of each statement of
net assets date. The $6,011,805 reported as landfill closure and post closure care cost liability at June 30,
2009, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based upon attaining 75% of the estimated
capacity of open cells #1, #2, #3, and #4 and 10.8% of cells #5 and #6 at the landfil] and moniloring all
cells, including closed cells, for thirty years. The County will recognize the remaining estimated cost of
closure and post closure care estimated to be $2,730,514 as the remaining capacity is filed. The
estimated remaining life is 30 years. These amounts are based on estimalted cost to perform all closure and
post closure care. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations. Though there are currently no legal restrictions on available funds, the County has
approximately $6,000,000 of currently available assets which may be used for landfill closure and post
closure costs.

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND LOSS

In fiscal year 2008, the County suffered a loss from fraud in the Solid Waste Enterprise fund.
The losses associaled with this theft wcre already recorded in prior years' expenditures when thc
purchases were made; therefore, no extraordinary loss was recorded in the fiscal year 2008 financial
stalements.

In fiscal year 2009, the County received an insurance settlement of $250,000 rclated 1o the above
loss. The Court has ordered the adjudicated perpetrators of the fraud to reimburse the County $168,000;
as of June 30, 2009, the County has received $5,000. The total of the payments received of $255,000, and
the booked receivable for $163,000 is included in miscellaneous revenue.

OPERATING LEASE
The County is committed under a non-cancelable operating lease for the nght to use the lcased
property as a site for the disposal of dredge spoil produced by the dredging of the Wicomico River.

Future minimum operating lease commiiments for this right are as follows:

Year ending June 30

2010 $ 25,000
2011 25,000
2012 25,000
2013 25,000
2014 25.000
Total $125,000

The lease also extends from April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2017 under which no rent shall be
payable. Rent expenditures were $25,000 for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND EQUITY

Reservations of fund equity show amounts that are not available {or current appropriations or are
legally restricted for specific uses. Within unreserved fund equity, designations are used to show the
amounts which are intended to be used for specific purposes but are not legally restricted. The purpose for
designation of fund equity of the General Fund is as follows:

Shore Transit 3 158,102
Self - insurance 1,011,982
Reserve for contingencies and emergencies 6,601,529
Death benefits 415,174
Arbitrage 101,649
Chamber improvements 1,377
Rate stabilization 1,302,854
OPEB 146,683
Working capital, Detention Center vending 1,000

3 9,740,350

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Wicomico County, Maryland

The County is a defendant in several lawsuits. After considering all relevant facts and the opinion
of legal counsel, it is management's opinion that such litigation will not, in the agpregate, have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County receives Federal and State grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by Federal and State agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by the
Federal and State agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the appropriate
agency. In the opinion of County management, such disallowances, if any, will not be significant to the
County's financial statements.

The Wicomico County Urban Services Commission continues to abide by an expired contract
with the City of Salisbury to purchase water and sewer supplied to a district. Thc Wicomico County
Urban Services Commission is required to charge this district 150% of the City's standard rate and remit
80% of the billings to the City. Total collections and payments for the year ended June 30, 2009 were
$£365,356. The Wicomico County Urban Services Commission also purchased services from the Town of
Delmar for two other districts. Total collections and payments for the districts for 2009 were $24,020.

In February 2002, the Wicomico County Urban Services Commission established a lighting

district in the Westwood/Westover Hills area. The cost of power is being borme by Delmarva Power
which then bills the Commission on a monthly basis. The Commission then bills the property owners.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Wicomico Nursing Home

The Wicomico Nursing Home (the "Facility"} was built with the financial assistance of a grant
under the Hill — Burton Program (Public Health Service Act). Federal regulations governing this program
provide that the Wicomico Nursing Home must budget for the support of, and make available,
uncompensated services to eligible persons meeting predefined criteria as stipulated by regulation. The
Facility’s cumulative obligation for uncompensated services, as determined by the Department of Health
and Human Services (DHHS), is carried forward each vear and is adjusted by the change in the Consumer
Price Index (CPI) for medical care.

Correspondence has been received from DHHS stating that the Wicomico Nursing Home has a
deficil for uncompensated services. The amount of the cumulative deficit, as determined by the DIHHS
and adjusted for the CPI through June 30, 2009, is approximately $221,000. In the opinien of
management, the Wicomico Nursing Home is financially unable to fulfill its uncompensated services
obligation through the provision of the Hill-Burton Program services.

Based on a recent review of compliance that was conducted by the DHHS, the Facility was
encouraged 1o request that its deficit obligation be converted to a period of time under the unrestricted
availability compliance alternative (UACA) provision of the Hill-Burton regulations. This conversion
would require that the Facilily continue to make available uncompensated services to eligible persons, but
that the obligation would have an expiration date. In March 2003, the DHHS approved the request by
providing notification that it had certified that the Facility could operate under the UACA to the Hill-
Burton Program uncompensated services regulations. As a result of the “deficit to time” conversion
calculation, the Facility’s new Hill-Burton uncompensated services obligation expires on September 2,
2011.

The Board of Education of Wicomico County

The Board regularly enters into contracts for goods and services during the normal course of
operations. The contracts often extend over fiscal years. The Board has signed contracts for the
constructien of a new James M. Bennett High School in the amount $77,868,331. At June 30, 2009
$43,789,108 had been expended. The Board also had signed contracts for the Parkside CTE roef in the
amount of $354,046 and the renovation of Bennett Middle School in the amount of $335,285. At June 30,
2009, §37,490 has been expended on Parkside CTE roof and $106,188 had been expended on the
renovation of Bennett Middle School.

The Beard receives a substantial ameunt of ils support from Federal, State, and local agencies in
the form of grants. Costs charged (o the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by
the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Beoard has not complied with the rules and
regulations governing the granls, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of
any related receivable at June 30, 2009 may be impaired. In the opinion of the Board, there'are no
significant contingent liabilities relating to comphliance with the rules and regulations goveming the
respeclive grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for
such contingencies.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

The Board of Education of Wicomico County (Continued)

The Board is a party in a matter pending before an Administrative Law Judge involving the
Depariment of Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH) and the Maryland State Department of Education
(MSDE). The matter involves an audit performed by the federal Office of the Inspector General (OIG) for
the period of July 1, 1999 to June 30, 2000 of the school health related billing claimed by Maryland’s
Medicaid Program on behalf of local school systems. In a report of findings issued on March 31, 2003,
the 10G recommended that Maryland refund approximately $20 million to the Center of Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS). Afier an initial appeal made by DFIMH and MSDE, the original refund request
by 10G was reduced to $16.4 million. Of the revised amount requested for refund, MSDE notified the
Board on April 3, 2008 that their share of the refund was $719,946. On April 15, 2008, the Board filed an
appeal with MSDE concerning their request for refund. This appeal was based upon numerous facts as
outlined by their attomey. On September 3, 2009, the Administrative Law Judge ruled in favor of the
Board and ordercd MSDE 10 recalculate the disallowance attributed to each of the local school systems
involved. To date, MSDE has withheld an additional $240,000 from Medicaid billings. The Board's
attomey will be recommending that the maximum amount the Board should be forced to repay is
$402,338, an amount ideniified as a reasonable allocation based on statistical methods. Initial reactions
from MSDE were unfavorable. The Board has designated or deferred certain amounts in anticipation of
our potential unfavorable outcome as a resull of the appeal process before the Administrative Law Judge -
£500,000-designated of General Fund unreserved fund balance.

The Board is a defendant in various lawsuits. After considering all relevant facts and opinion of
legal counsel, it is management’s ¢opinion that such litigation with not have a material adverse effect on

the financial position of the Board.

The Wicomico County Free Librarv, Inc.

The Library receives a substantial amount of its support from the state government. A significant
reduction in the level of this supponrt, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Library's programs
and activities.

The Library is the recipient of various Fedcral and State and other grants. The Library may be
under obligation to repay these grant funds if upon final review by the respective granting agencies, the
funds expended did not meet the established program objectives. Management is not aware of any
repayment requests affecting these {inancial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Wicemico County, Maryland

The Primary Government is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The County carries commercial
insurance for these and other risks of loss. Additionally, the County designates a portion of its unreserved
fund balance for self-insurance for losses arising from wvandalism, automobile damage, boiler
replacement, and disability insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance in the last three years.

The Board of Education of Wicoemico County

The Board of Education of Wicomico County is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts;
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. In July 1993, the Board of Education of Wicomico County joined the Maryland Association of
. Boards of Education Workers' Compensation Group Insurance Fuad (the Fund), a public entity risk pool
currently providing workers' compensation coverage for participating boards of education in the State of
Maryland. The Board of Education of Wicomico County pays an annual premium to the Fund calculated
based on projected payroll. The agreement {or the Fund provides that it will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and wil! reinsure through commercial companies for claims which exceed coverage
limits as specified in the agreement. Should the Fund encounter deficits in the workers compensalion
claims funds, this deficit may be made up from additional assessments of boards participating in fund.
The Board has also joined the Maryland Association of Board of Edueation’s Group Insurance Pool (the
Pool) on July 1, 2000. The Pool is a public entity risk pool providing property and casualty insurance
coverage for its participating members, who are also boards of education in the State of Maryland. The
Board pays an annual premium to thc Pool, based on student enrollment, vehicle inventory, insurable
value of board property, and insurance claims expcrience from previous years. The agreement for the
Pool provides that it will be self sustaining through member premiums and ‘will reinsure through
commercial companies for claims that exceed coverage limits for legal liability, property, and crime
exposures specified in the agreement. Should the Pool encounter deficits in either the Property or casualty
fund, this deficit may be made up from additional assessments of boards participating in the Pool. The
Board continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks, including pollution liability, retirement
plan fiduciary liability, employee health and life insurance. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance
coverage for each of the past three fiscal vears.

82



WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Wicomico County IFree Library, Inc.

The Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts; theft
of, damage lo, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. These risks are primarily mitigated by coverage from commercial insurance companies. The
Wicomico County Free Library, Inc. is essentially self-insured for purposes of funding unemployment
claims, and earmarks a portion of the General Fund budget each year for potential claims.

As of June 30 of each year, expenditures and claims are recognized when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In determining claims, events that
might create claims, but for which none have been reported, are considecred. The Library anticipates no
additional liabilities for potential claims against the Library as of June 30, 2009. Therefore the Statement
of Net Assets contains no provision for, and it also does not present, estimated claims.

There have been no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage as compared with
the coverage for the previous year. There were no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage in any of

the past three years.

The Wicomico County Urban Services Commission

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefi of, damage to, and
destruction of assels; errors and omissions; and nalural disasters, Wicomico County, Maryland carries
commercial insurance for these and other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
" exceeded commercial insurance in the last three years.

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the County has issued Economic Developinent Revenue Bonds to provide
financial assistance to private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and
commercial factlities and equipment deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from revenues to be received in connection with the financing
and from any other monies made available to the user for such purposes. Upon repayment of the bonds,
ownership of the acquired facilities and equipment transfers to the private - sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are reported as liabilities and an offsetting
receivable in the accompanying f{inancial statements. At June 30, 2009 the MICRF loan had an
outstanding balance of $159,418. At June 30, 2009 the County had a receivable from the private sector
entity for $179,880. '
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Fund equity at June 30, 2008 has been restated for the governmental funds as follows:

Other Total
General Grants Capital Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Projects Roads Funds Funds
Fund equity as previously reported $ 35583327 3§ 1,742,840 § 33,871,945 § 7,736472 3§ 1464613 3 80,399,197
Reclassification of the Volunteer Fire Fund to a separate
fiduciary fund - (401,760) - - - (401,760)
Reclassification of the Forest Conservation Fund to a
separate fiduciary fund - (148,157 - - - (148,157)
Accounts receivable not reported in the proper period or
not reversed in the proper penod 24,988 - (93,771) - - (68,783)
Correction of deferred income from prior year - (50,977) - - - (50,977)
Accounts payable not reported in the proper period or nol
reversed in the proper period (41,564) - 214,709 - 8,372 181,517
Reclassification o_fin[crcsl eamned on reserves (47,053) - - - - ) (47,053)
Other adjustments (2) - 5,505 - 8,434 13,937
Fund equity at June 30, 2008 as
restated $ 35519696 & 1,141,946 $ 33998388 $§ 7736472 % 1481419 § 79877921
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PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

Fund equity at June 30, 2008 has been restated for the enterprise funds as follows:

Fund equity at June 30, 2008 as
previously reported

Correction of deferred income from
prior year

Correction (o remove commissions

mistakenly accrued in a prior year

Other adjustments

Fund equity at June 30, 2008 as
restated

Convention Urban
Solid Nursing & Visitors Youth & Services &
Wasle Airport Home Bureau Civic Center Other Funds
$ 16,888305 $ 40479762 $ 2957648 % 987,659 $ 7,533,482 § 1,998,623
- - - - - (137,749)
- - - - - (22,544)
3 . - (11,405) {2) (2)
$ 16888308 § 40479762 § 2,957,648 % 976,254 § 7533480 § 1838328 §
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2009

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Continued)

Total net assets at June 30, 2008 have been restated for the governmental and business type aclivities
in the government-wide financial statements as follows:

Governmental  Business-Type

Aclivities Activities
Net assets at June 30, 2008 as previously reported § 67,150,953 § 70845479
Net changes to governmental funds {on previous page) (521,276) {171,699}
Correction 10 fixed assets (25,585) -
Fund equity at June 30, 2008 as restated § 66,604,092 $ 70,673,780
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (WITH YARIANCES)
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Amounts {(Unfavorable)
Original Final
REVENUES
Property taxes 3 59,481,721 $ 59,481,721 $ 60,328,149 3 846,428
Income taxes 42,000,000 42,000,000 41,198,096 (801,904)
Other taxes 5,138,154 5,138,154 4,037,397 (1,100,757)
Licenses and permits 1,148,500 1,148,500 1,279,087 130,587
Intergovernmental 2,336,585 2,117,407 1,969,785 (147,622)
Charges for services 6,388,405 6,406,405 5,296,990 (1,109,415)
Court fines and forfeitures 41,700 41,700 90,241 48,541
Miscellaneous 205,244 205,244 606,467 401,223
Investment eamnings 3,200,000 3,200,000 1,295,963 (1,904,037)
Total revenues 119,940,309 119,739,131 116,102,175 (3,636,956)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Legislative/council 474,100 479,353 321,283 158,070
Administrative/cxecutive 563,537 592,715 511,176 81,539
Judicial
Circuit Coun 1,003,916 1,135,115 981,249 153,866
Orphans' Court 40,738 40,738 30,190 10,548
State's Attorney 1,801,474 1,801,474 1,710,359 91,115
Total judicial 2,846,128 2,977,327 2,721,798 255,529
Elections 1,160,897 1,237,323 610,021 627,302
Management information systems 769,245 943,692 814918 128,774
Purchasing 113,885 113,885 111,466 2419
Financial administration
Finance 1,177,527 1,260,580 1,087,227 173,353
Public accountant 97,175 97,175 96,685 490
Total financial administration 1,274,702 1,357,755 1,183,912 173,843
Human resources 512,502 518,741 424,670 94,071
Legal 286,080 308,431 307,201 1,230
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (WITH VARIANCES)
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{Continued)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
General government {continued)

Commuunity promotion
Planning and zoning
Tri-County Council
General services
Total general government
Public safely
Sheriffs Department
Emergency Services
Fire Department
Liquor License Board
Protection of animals
Total public safety
Detention Center
Public works
Supervision
" Weed control

Sanilation, water, and sewer

Total public works

VYariance with
Final Budgpet -

Actual Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Unfaverable
332,684 332,684 309,219 23,465
1,148,388 1,246,465 868,074 378,391
383,000 383,000 383,000 -
1,179,742 1,185,909 943,973 241,936
11,044,890 11,677,280 9,510,711 2,166,569
8,434,729 8,487,072 8,067,220 419,843
1,803,216 1,750,535 1,618,070 132,465
4,326,872 4,326,872 4,189,915 136,957
179,639 220,521 214,499 6,022
326,613 326,633 326,633 -
15,071,089 15,111,633 14,416,346 695,287
13,443,428 13,473,167 12,611,356 861,811
633,224 633,224 580,658 52,566
3,500 3,500 2,407 1,093
179,136 179,136 179,136 -
815,860 815,860 762,201 53,659
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EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Health

Public health

Mosquito control

Gypsy Moth control

Total healih
Social services

Education

Board of Education
Wicomico County Free Library

School Building Comm
Community College - grant
Extension Service

Total education
Recreation and culture

Miscellaneous
Social security
Funded retirement plan
OPLB
Provision for compensated absences
Hospitalization
Unemployment compensation
Insurance - life and workmen's comp
Other fringe benefits
Liability insurance
Auto sinking fund

Total miscellaneous

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (WITH VARIANCES)

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(Continued)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final
3,978,761 3,978,761 3,578,224 400,537
156,735 159,053 114,943 44,110
3,000 3,000 1,500 1,500
4,138,496 4,140,814 3,694,667 446,147
182,898 469,849 469,849 -
50,204,655 50,204,655 50,204,655 -
1,648,477 1,672,052 1,648,477 23,575
1,000 1,000 33 967
4,286,365 4,286,365 4,286,365 -
112,198 145,034 139,306 5,728
56,252,695 56,309,106 56,278,836 30,270
1,972,663 1,983,663 1,850,757 132,906
1,979,595 1,979,595 1,845,776 133,819
2,859,676 2,859,676 2,585,308 274,368
1,056,157 1,154,136 1,154,136 -
- 233,005 233,005 -
4,576,068 4,688,352 4,688,352 -
37,109 101,307 78,887 22,420
1,628,974 1,121,508 276,641 844,867
134,695 134,695 (56,627) 191,322
750,000 750,000 483,193 266,807
- - (36,571) 36,571
13,022,274 13,022,274 1 1,252,100 1,770,174
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (WITH VARIANCES)

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
{Continucd)

Variance with
Final Budget -

Actual Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Debt service
Principal 7,856,375 7,844,921 7,844,921 -
Interest 4,020,362 4,061,042 4,061,642 -
Agent fees 45,000 39,986 19,986 -
Tolal debt service 11,921,737 11,946,549 11,946,549 -
Total expenditures 127,866,030 128,950,195 122,793,372 6,156,823
Excess of revenues under
expenditures (7,925,721) (9,211,064) {6,691,197) 2,519,867
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in 346,530 346,530 316,624 {29,906)
Transfers oul (860,361) (854,184) (860,362) (6,178)
Appropriations of fund equity 9,249,083 10,179,591 - {10,179,591)
Other uses (809,531) (460,873) - 460,873
Total other financing
sources {uses) 7,925,721 9,211,064 {543,738) (9,754,802)

Net change in fund balances b

§ (7,234,935)

§ (7,234,935)
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
SCHEDULE OF PENSION PLAN FUNDING PROGRESS

JUNE 30, 2009

Unfunded

Pension

: Benefit
Unfunded Net Assets Obligation as
Date of Net Assets Pension Pension Expressed as Annual a Percentage

Actuarial Available Benefit Benefit a Percentage Covered of Covered

Report for Benefits Obligation Obligation of PBO "Payroll Payroll
7/171995  § 5,105,675 § 5,927,547 § 821,872 86.13% 4,701,095 17.48%
7/1/1996 5,753,119 7,754,617 2,001,498 74.19% 4,767,724 41.98%
7/1/1997 6,680,501 8,675,866 1,995,365 77.00% 6,351,914 3141%
7/1/1998 7,421,560 13,133,300 5,711,740 56.51% 7,751,167 73.69%
7/1/1999 8,459,699 14,129,784 5,670,085 59.87% 9,725,665 58.30%
7/1/2000 8,863,400 15,654,123 6,790,723 56.62% 9,582,400 70.87%
7/1/2001 10,877,778 17,633,377 6,755,599 61.69% 12,301,827 54.92%
7/1/2002 11,413,790 20,085,761 8,671,971 56.83% 13,695,865 63.32%
7/1/2003 13,161,165 22,103,272 8,942,107 59.54% 15,822,985 56.51%
7/1/2004 16,427,909 24,322,330 7,894,421 67.54% 17,541,485 45.00%
7/1/2005 19,845,654 27,075,903 7,230,249 73.30% 17,194,336 42.05%
7/1/2006 25,580,172 30,318,478 4,738,306 84.37% 18,792,937 25.21%
7/1/2007 33,737,294 33,668,624 (68,670) 160.20% 22,720,183 0.30%
7/1/2008 37,923,369 38,894,852 971,484 97.50% 24,662,097 3.94%
7/1/2009 35,099,401 38,537,760 3,438,359 61.08% 26,460,911 12.99%
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

REVENUE DETAIL

BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

Real and personal property taxes
Real property
Railroads and public utilities
Ordinary business corporations

Subtotal real and personal property taxes
Interest and fees on delinquent taxes

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Subtotal real and personal property taxes afier

interest and fees on delinquent taxes

Manufacturing exemptions
Net additions and abatements
Tax credits

Deferred and uncollected taxes
Discounts allowed

Total real and persenal property taxes

Income taxes

Other taxes
Admission and amusement
Recordation tax
911 telephone surcharge tax
Trailer park
Total other taxes
Total taxes

Licenses and permits
Alcoholic beverages
Amusement
Traders
Building, equipment and electrical
Marriage
Cable TV franchise
Other
Total licenses and permits

Varlance
Amended ' Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfaverable)
$ 51,493,106 54,473,099 5 2,979,993
2,766,643 2,791,398 24,755
7,790,672 7,751,568 (39,104)
62,050,421 65,016,065 2,965,644
525,000 592,888 67,888
62,575,421 65,608,953 3,033,532
(2,000,000) (1,434,017 565,983
(373,700) (178,456) 195,244
(35,000) (3,076,793) {3,041,793)
(275,000) (216,179 58,821
(410,000) {375,359) 34,641
59,481,721 60,328,149 846,428
42,000,000 41,198,096 {801,904)
175,000 145,570 (29,430)
4,000,000 2,845,744 (1,154,256)
658,154 658,779 625
305,000 387,304 82,304
5,138,154 4,037,397 (1,100,757)
106,619,875 105,563,642 (1,056,233)
176,600 190,060 13,460
8,400 7,135 {1,265)
66,000 70,303 4,303
170,000 158,045 (11,955)
24,000 20,140 {3,860)
700,000 824,078 124,078
3,500 9,326 5,826
1,148,500 1,279,087 130,587
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

REVENUE DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{Continued)

Intergovernmental
Operating grants and contributions
Disparity grant
Health
Public safety - detention center
Public safely - police
Public safely - emergency management
Charges for services and fees
Conservaltion of natural resources -
Chesapeake Bay Critical Areas
General government - circuit courts
Health
Payments in lieu of taxes
Total intergovernmental

Service charges and fees

Bay Restoration - administrative fee

City of Salisbury - share of building expenses
City of Salisbury - share of MIS

City of Salisbury - share of planning & zoning

Detention Cenler - local charges
Detention Center - reimbursement for inmates

expenses
Fire safety fees
Forest Conservation service charges
Health - mosquito control fees
Miscellaneous fees, rentals, and sales
Public works subidvision review fees
Recreation program fees
Room tax - administrative fee
Sheniff's fees
Sheriff's services - Board of Education
Enterprise funds - administrative fee
Wicomico County Liquor Control Board fec
Zoning and subdivision fees

Total service charges and fees

Variance
Amended Favorable

Budget Aclual (Unfavorable)
741,624 741,624 ]
62,055 65,672 3,617
91,703 91,703 -
377,448 186,567 9,119
17,622 - (17,622)
10,674 750 (9,924)
144,128 133,390 (10,738)
672,153 494 725 (177,428)

- 55,354 55,354
2,117,407 1,969,785 (147,622)
30,000 32671 2,671
198,150 233,392 35,242
66,435 61,944 (4,491
150,000 150,000 -
213,600 123,033 (90,567)
3,133,658 2,016,502 (1,117,156)
175,000 130,456 (44,544)
18,000 10,888 (7,112)
90,000 78,832 (11,168)
13,020 43,886 30,866
80,000 57,954 (22,046)
58,300 58,508 208
12,105 8532 (3,573
458,982 693,152 234,170
519,036 534,896 15,860
95,268 95,268 -
396,000 476,000 80,000
698,851 491,076 (207,775)
6,406,405 5,296,990 (1,109,415)
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

REVENUE DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(Continued)
Variance
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Fines and forfeitures 41,700 90,241 48,541
Miscellancous 205,244 606,467 401,223
Interest 3,200,000 1,295,963 (1,904,037
Total revenues $ 119,739,131 $ 116,102,175 & (3,636,956)
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

EXPENDITURE DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
_ Variance
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
General government
Legislative/council
Salaries - County Council $ 115,000 % 112,007 % 2,993
Salaries - general 205,875 141,770 64,105
Operating expenditures 131,830 51,797 80,033
Capital outlay 26,648 15,709 10,939
Total legislative/council 476,353 321,283 158,070
Administrative/executive
Salaries - elected office 86,387 86,387 -
Salaries - general 330,636 330,636 -
Operating expenditures 172,192 92,779 79,413
Capital outlay 3,500 1,374 2,126
Total administrative/executive 592,715 511,176 81,539
Judicial
Circuit Court
Salaries - general 569,044 568,420 624
Operating expenditures 350,164 214,410 135,754
Capital outlay 215,907 198,419 17,488
Total Circuit Court 1,135,115 081,249 153,866
Orphans' Count
Salaries - general 19,200 19,200 -
Operating expenditures 21,538 10,990 10,548
Total Orphans' Court 40,738 30,190 10,548
State's Attomey
Salaries - elected office 116,311 116,311 -
Salaries - general 1,543,863 1,466,781 77,082
Operating expenditures 124,258 110,226 14,032
Capital outlay 17,042 17,041 |
Total State's Allomey 1,801,474 1,710,359 91,115
Total judicial 2,977,327 2,721,798 255,529
Elections i
Salaries - general 344,480 279,502 64,978
Operating expenditures 658,615 273,497 385,118
Capital outlay 234,228 57,022 177,206
Total elections 1,237,323 610,021 627,302
Management information systems
Salaries - general 364,945 359,031 5,014
Operating expenditures 164,449 110,022 54,427
Capital outlay 414,298 344 965 69,333
Total management information systems 643,692 814918 128,774
Purchasing :
Salaries - general 101,125 101,010 115
Operating expenditures 10,760 8,457 2,303
Capital outlay 2,000 1,999 ]
Total purchasing 113,885 111,466 2,419
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
EXPENDITURE DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

{Continued)
Variance
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
General government (continued)
Financial administration
Finance
Salaries - general 844,909 799 096 45,813
Operating expenditures 377,538 278,924 98,614
Capital outlay 38,133 9,207 28,926
Total finance ‘ 1,260,580 1,087,227 173,353
Public accountant
Auditors' services 97.175 96,685 490
Total financial administration 1,357,755 1,183,912 173,843
Human resources
Salaries - general 333,407 327,826 5,581
Operating expenditures 157,855 72,503 85,352
Capital outlay 27479 24,341 3,138
Total human resources 518,741 424,670 84,071
Legal
Salaries - general 207,163 206,155 1,008
Operating expenditures 81,917 81,917 -
Capital outlay 19,351 19,129 222
Total legal 308,431 307,201 1,230
Community promotion
Comrnunity access channel 131,000 131,000 -
Economic development 138,475 138,475 -
Operating expenditures 42,000 18,535 23,465
QOther 21,209 21,209 -
Total community promotion 332,684 309,219 23,465
Planning and zoning
Salaries 802,745 707,518 95,227
Operating expenditures 437,863 154,699 283,164
Capital outlay 5,857 5,857 -
Total planning and zoning 1,246,465 868,074 378,391
Tri-Counly Council -
Operating expenditures 343,000 343,000 -
Capital outlay 40,000 40,000 -
Total Tri-County Council 383,000 383,000 -
General services
Salaries 296,449 296,449 -
Operating expenditures 692,517 621,617 70,900
Capital outlay 196,943 25,907 171,036
Total general services 1,185,909 943 973 241,936
Total general government 11,677,280 9,510,711 2,166,569
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

EXPENDITURE DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(Continued)
Variance
Amended Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Public safety '
Sheriff's Department
Salary - Sheriff 85,000 83,656 1,344
Salaries - general 6,941,136 6,654,791 286,345
Operating expenditures 837,348 733,416 103,932
Capital outlay 623,588 595,366 28,222
Total Sheriff's Department 8,487.072 8,067,229 419,843
Emergency Services
Salarics - general 1,132,237 1,060,717 71,520
Operating expenditures 578,683 528,514 50,169
Capital outlay 39615 28,839 10,776
Total Emergency Services 1,750,535 1,618,070 132,465
Fire Department
City of Salisbury contributions
Ambulance 596,000 596,000 -
Fire Depariment 125,000 125,000 -
Volunteer Ambulance 1,490,000 1,490,000 -
Volunteer Ambulance - insurance 75,000 58,742 16,258
Volunteer Fire Companies
Workers' compensation insurance 171,872 79,047 92,825
LOSAP commitiee 75,000 69,653 5,347
Grants 1,400,000 1,400,000 -
Sinking fund 350,000 350,000 -
Hepatitis vaccine 5,000 1,475 3,525
Respiratory protection 39,000 19,998 19,002
Total Fire Department 4,326,872 4,189,915 136,957
Liquor License Board :
Salaries - board members and attorneys 9,747 9,747 -
Salaries - general 130,059 130,059 -
Operating expenditures 74,792 74,526 266
Capital outlay 5,923 167 5,756
Total Liquor License Board 220,521 214,499 6,022
Protection of animals
Contractual services - Humane Society 326,633 326,633 -
Total public safety 15,111,633 14,416,346 695,287
Detention Center
Salaries - general 8,518,742 8,263,654 255,088
Medical 2,315,390 2,106,707 208,683
Contracted food services 944 650 744,107 200,543
Operating expenditures 1,643,844 1,446,777 197,067
Capital outlay 50,541 50,111 430
Total Detention Center 13,473,167 12,611,356 861,811
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
- EXPENDITURE DETAIL .
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Public works

Supervision
Salaries - general
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total supervision

Weed control
Salaries - general

Sanitation, water, and sewer
Fruitland waler and sewer

Total public works

Health
Public health
Salaries - general
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total public health
Mosquito control
Salaries - general
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Total mosquito control
Gypsy Moth control
Operating expenditures

Total health

Social services
Teen Adull Center
Maintenance of Aged in Community
Commission on Aging
Life Crisis Center - grant

Total social services

(Continued)

Variance
Amended Favorable
Budpget Actual (Unfavorable)
593,468 549,119 44,349
34,700 28418 6,282
5,056 3,121 1,935
633,224 580,658 52,566
3,500 2,407 1,093
179,136 179,136 -
815,860 762,201 53,659
2,340,762 2,266,929 73,833
1,600,899 1,122.223 478,676
37,100 189,072 (151,972)
3,978,761 3,578,224 400,537
92,885 72,576 20,309
45,168 21,739 23,429
21,000 20,628 372
159,053 114,943 44,110
3,000 1,500 1,500
4,140,814 3,694,667 446,147
61,363 61,363 -
392,986 392,986 -
500 500 -
15,000 15,000 -
469,849 469,849
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

Fducation

Board of Education

Wicomico County Free Library
School Building Comm
Community College - grant
Extension Service

Total education

Recreation and culture
Salaries - general
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total Recreation and culture

Miscellaneous
Social security
Funded retirement plan
OPEB
Provision for compensated absences
Hospitalization
Unemployment compensation
Insurance - life and workmen's comp
Other fringe benefits
Liability insurance
Auto sinking fund

Total miscellaneous

Debt service
Principal - County
Principal - Board of Education
Interest - County
Interest - Board of Education
Agenl fees

Total debt service

Total expenditures

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
(Continued)

Variance
Amended Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
50,204,655 50,204,655 -
1,672,052 1,648,477 23,575
1,000 33 967
4,286,365 4,286,365 -
145,034 136,306 5,728
56,309,106 56,278,836 30,270
1,344,897 1,321,447 23.450
591,766 482,969 108,797
47,000 46,341 659
1,983,663 1,850,757 132,906
1,979,595 1,845,776 133,819
2,850,676 2,585,308 274,368
1,154,136 1,154,136 -
233,005 233,005 -

4 688,352 4,688,352 -
101,307 78,887 22,420
1,121,508 276,641 844,867
134,695 {56,627) 191,322
750,000 483,193 266,807

- (36,571) 36,571
13,022,274 11,252,100 1,770,174
2,103,614 2,103,614 -
5,741,307 5,741,307 -
840,639 840,639 -
3,221,003 3,221,003 -
36,986 39,986 -
11,946,549 11,946,549 -
$ 128,950,195 % 122,793372 § 6,156,823
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) DETAIL
BUDGET AND ACTUAL—GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Transfers in
Wicomico County Recreation Fund
Wicomico County Solid Waste
Total transfers in

Transfers out
Wicomico County Grants
Wicomico County Roads
Wicomico County Civic Center
Total transfers out

Appropriations of fund equity
Fund balance reappropriated
Fund balance reappropriated - capital
projects
Supplemental fund equity appropriations
Total appropriations of fund equity

Other uses

Contingency
Total other uses

Total other financing sources (uscs)

Variance

Amended Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
197,540 177,756 (19,784)
148,990 138,868 (10,122)
346,530 316,624 {29,9006)
(37,215) (43,393) (6,178)
(300,000) (300,000} -
(516,969) (516,969) -
(854,184) (860,362) (6,178)
9,187,028 - (9,187,028)
286,951 - (286,951)
705,612 - (705,612)
10,179,591 - (10,179,591)
(460,873) - 460,873
(460,873) - 460,873
9211,064 % (543,738) {9,754,802)
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Inventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
© Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for
Inventories
Encumbrances
Unreserved
Designated for
Fund purposes
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
BALANCE SHEET
OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2009

Total-Other
Agricultural Governmental

Recreation Tax Ditches Tax Funds
b 1,075,626 $ 436,006 3 56,253 $ 1,567,885
3,215 538 - 3,753
4,413 - - 4413
1,083,254 436,544 56,253 1,576,051
44,702 1,655 11,770 58,127
- 44,759 - 44,759
- 425 44 482 44,907
44,702 46,839 56,252 147,793
4,413 - - 4,413
56,418 - 56,418
977,721 389,705 1 1,367,427
1,038,552 389,705 1 1,428,258
h) 1,083,254 3 436,544 $ 56,253 3 1,576,051
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2009
Total-Other
Agricultural Governmental
Recreation Tax Ditches Tax Funds

REVENUES
Other taxes $ -8 85254 § 38268  § 123,522
Charges for services 1,168,479 - - 1,168,479
Miscellaneous 4,054 - 4,054
Investment earnings 29 6,944 - 6,973

Total revenues 1,168,508 96,252 38,268 1,303,028
EXPENDITURES
Public works - 111,793 - 111,793
Recreation and culture 962,472 - - 962,472
Miscellaneous 2 - 698 700
Principal - - 30,198 30,198
Interest and other charges - - 7,371 7,371

Total expenditures 962,474 111,793 38,267 1,112,534
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 206,034 (15,541) } 190,494
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers in 111,947 - - 111,947
Transfers out (355,602) - - (355,602)

Total other financing uses (243,655) - - {(243,655)
Net change in fund balances (37,621) (15,541) | (53,161)
Fund balances - beginning 1,076,173 405,246 - 1,481,419
Fund balances - ending $ 1,038,552 $ 389,705 $ l $ 1,428,258
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
GENERAL FUND
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
FIVE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

_ Tax Rate Percent of
Fiscal County State Levy
Year Ended Personal/ Real/ Assessable Tax Current Collected in
June 30 Real Corporate  Pers/Corp Base' Levy2 Collections Year of Levy
2009 $ 0814 % 2035 $ 0392 % 7,128,269,617 63,510,155 $ 62,915,011 99.06%
2008 0.881 2.203 0.392 6,294,338,379 61,254,169 60,616,624 98.96%
2007 0.942 2.355 0.392 5,569,608,243 58,604,151 57,717,360 98.49%
2006 0.993 2.483 0.462 4,940,897,600 54,923,818 54,045,733 98.40%
2005 1.025 2.563 0.462 4,523,263,296 52,171,966 - 51,009,315 97.77%
Notes:

Includes six month basis expressed as a full year equivalent,
Prior years tax levy and collections have been adjusted for their applicable year's additions,
abatements and refunds, but not for any additions, abatements or refunds that occure subsequent

to that year.

3 Collections are net of refunds.
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Outstanding

Total Delinquent
Delinquent Collections Outstanding  County Taxes
Tax Total Tax as a Percent of Delinquent as a Percent of
Collections Collections’ Current Levy  County Taxes  Current Levy
3 280,940  § 60,897,564 05.89% ¥ 1,742,696 2.74%
868,981 61,485,605 100.38% 1,636,960 2.67%
670,737 . 58,388,097 99.63% 2,082,720 3.55%
769,207 54,814,940 99.80% 2,350,718 4.28%
111,527 51,120,842 97.99% 2,493,733 4.78%



WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
SUPPLEMENTARY DEBT INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2009

Interest
Governmental aclivities ) Rate
General obligation bonds
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds of 1999 35-50
Public Improvement Bonds of 2001 40-49
Public Improvement Bonds of 2002 4.0-5.0
Drilt Academy Bonds of 2002 3.54
Public Improvement Bonds of 2002 "A" 3.62
Public Improvement Bonds of 2003 "B" 3.98
Public Improvemnent Bonds of 2003 "2™" ' 2.0-3.85
Public Improvement Bonds of 2004 "1°" 3.25
Public Improvement Bonds of 2004 "2™" 25-35
General Obligation Bond 2004 Series 4.98
Public Improvement Bonds of 2005 "1 39
Public Improvement Bonds of 2005 "2"™" 4.00
Public Improvement Bonds of 2006 4.00
Public Improvement Bonds of 2007 40-4.5
Public Improvement Bonds of 2008 35-60
Refunding Bonds of 2009 2.5-3.5
Total general obligation bonds
Maryland Water Qualtiy loans
Water Quality Bond of 1990, Series A 4,89
State loans
Maryland Industrial and Commercial Redevelopment Fund Loan 5.50
Other loans
City of Salisbury Inter-Agency Agreement 4,89
Capital lease obligations
*Police Intercept Vehicles 4.04
*Ford Crown Victoria Police Vehicles 423
*(SSI Dispatch System 3.21

Toltal Governmental aclivity long-term liabilities
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Date of Issue

Date of Maturity

Original

June 30, 2009

December 1, 1999
February 1, 2001
February 1, 2002
July 23, 2002
November 20, 2002
January 7, 2003
December 1, 2003
February 11, 2004
September 1, 2004
December 28, 2004
April 12, 2005
November 15, 2005
October 1, 2006
December 1, 2007
December 1, 2008
June 15, 2009

March 21, 1990

September 19, 1994

March 21, 1990

May 17, 2007
August 28, 2006
March 31, 2008

December 1, 2019
February 1, 2021
February 1, 2022
July 1, 2009
November 1, 2017
January 1, 2018
December 1, 2018
February 1, 2019
September 1, 2016
January 1, 2017
March 1, 2020
November 1, 2020
October 1, 2021
December 1, 2022
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2019

‘March 21, 2012

September 19, 2014
March 21, 2012

July 1, 2009
August 28, 2009
March 27, 2012

Balance Balance
9,561,963 ) 479,309
7,205,000 4,325,000
6,970,000 5,170,000

430,000 67,879
2,000,000 1,320,000
5,980,000 3,915,000
3,800,000 2,695 000
4,450,000 3,192,998
5,000,000 3,320,000

500,000 364,539
3,058,000 2,398,161
8,525,000 7,160,000

11,225,000 9,725,000
16,675,000 15,825,000
20,170,000 20,170,000
20,940,000 20,167,447

126,489,963 100,295,333

864,569 117,225

400,205 159,418

76,146 10,923

391,892

271,219

470,548 282,000
1,133,659 282,000

128,964,542 $ 100,864,899




WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND
SUPPLEMENTARY DEBT INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2009

(Continued)
Interest
Business-type activities Rate
General obligation bonds
Public Improvement Bonds of 1999 35-50
Public Improvement Bonds of 2005 "1™ _ 3.9
Refunding Bonds of 2009 25-35

Total General obligation bonds
Maryland Water Quality loans
Water Quality Bond of 1990, Series A 4.89
Total Maryland Water Quality loans

Mortgage payable
Nursing Home 436

Capital lease obligations

*Suntrust Lease 3.68
*Suntrust Caterpillar 836H Compactor ‘ 3.66
*Tub Grinder 427
*Suntrust Amphibious Excavator 4.15
*Suntrust Caterpillar 938 Wheel Loader 3.21
*Suntrust Amphibious Excavator and Dump Truck 4.15

Total Capital lease obligations

Total Business-type activity long-term liabilities
Less:Nursing Home

Total Business-type activity long-term liabilities, primary government
Total debt, primary government
* Debt not subject to limitation

Debt subject to limitation
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Original

June 30, 2009

Date of Issue Date of Maturity Balance Balance
December |, 1699 December 1, 2019 313,037 3 15,692
April 12, 2005 March 1, 2020 440,000 341,839
June 15, 2009 December 1, 2019 1,002,944 1,014,510

1,755,981 1,372,041

March 21, 1990 March 21, 2012 500,000 67,782
500,000 67,782

April 1, 1999 Ociober 1, 2004 2,180,000 1,193,537
September 6, 2005 Seplember 6, 2010 734,236 196,392
September 1, 2005 September 1, 2010 649,089 173,554
September 21, 2005 Sceptember 21, 2010 322,753 75,881
September 1, 2006 September 1, 2011 393,000 173,127
March 27, 2008 March 27, 2013 145,237 111,080
December 30, 2008 December 30, 2013 678,043 616,383
2,922,358 1,346,417

7,358,339 3,979,777
{2,180,000) (1,193,537)

5,178,339 2,786,240

134,142,881 103,651,139
(3,314,250) (1,628,417)

130,828,631 $ 102,022,722




WICOMICQ COUNTY, MARYLAND
SUPPLEMENTARY DEBT INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2009
(Continued)

The annual debt service requirements (principal and interest) of the Primary Government for
general obligation bonds, state loans, and other loans are as follows:

Total Debt
Fiscal General Service on
Year Ending Obligation State Other Debt Subject
June 30 Bonds Loans Loans to Limitation
2010 3 12,799,466 3 35,167 § 4,224 5 12,838,857
2011 12,967,261 15,167 4,224 13,006,652
2012 13,178,049 35,167 4224 13,217,440
2013 12,945,719 35,167 - 12,980,886
2014 9,695,412 15,167 - 9,730,579
2015 9,538,015 8,791 - 9,546,806
2016 8,619,910 - 8,619,910
2017 8,507,747 - - 8,507,747
2018 7,920,111 - - 7,920,111
2019 7,095,422 - - 7,095,422
2020 6,254,070 - - 6,254,070
2021 5,342,867 - - 5,342,867
2022 4,139,110 - - 4,139,110
2023 2,784,573 - - 2,784,573
2024 1,267,473 - - 1,267,473
2025 1,219,173 - - 1,219,173
2026 , 1,174,093 - - 1,174,093
2027 1,132,031 - - 1,132,031
2028 1,089,568 - - 1,089,568
2029 1,046,500 - - 1,046,500
2030 1,003,030 - - 1,003,030
2031 959,560 - - 959,560
2032 915,688 - - 915,688
2033 871,413 - - 871,413
2034 827,142 - - 827,142
Total 133,293,403 184,626 12,672 133,490,701
Less interest 31,441,022 25,208 1,749 31,467,979
Qutstanding ' '
principal $ 101,852,381 5 159418 3 10,923 3 102,022,722
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

BALANCE SHEET
LOCAL MANAGEMENT BOARD

JUNE 30, 2009
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008)

2009 2008
ASSETS : :
Cash allocation from general fund $ 575,797 § 653,968
Grants receivable 562,059 674,077
Prepaid expenses 5,000 -
Total assels b 1,142856 §% 1,328,045
LIABILITIES AND FUND BAILLANCE
Accounts payable 5 1,922, % 363,437
Deferred revenue 775,036 603,183
Accrued payroll and 1axes : 13,224 19,285
Accrued compensated absences 11,616 21,97t
Towal liabilities 801,798 1,007,876
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances - 567,894
Unreserved fund balance 341,058 (247,725)
Total fund balances, as restated 341,058 320,169
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,142,856 §% 1,328,045
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WICOMICO COUNTY, MARYLAND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

LOCAL MANAGEMENT BOARD

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2008}

Revenues
Subcabinet fund
Federal grants
Other state grants
Community grants

Total revenues

Expenditures
Subcahinet Fund

Administrative expenditures

Interagency Family Preservation Services

Community Service Initiative
In-State
Local Coordinating Council

Local Access Training

Wraparound Funds

After School

Child Advocacy Center

Juvenile Altermnatives

Family Partnership Coalition

Community Care Intensive

Other

Truancy Prevention Elementary Pilot

RDEF - Eastern Shore Training
Total subcabinet fund

Federal grants

Other state grant

Community grants

Salaries - general
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Interest income
Interfund transfer
Miseellaneous income

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expendilures
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2009 2008
1,745,455 1,882,145
493,978 867,352
106,937 41,752
2,000 14,867
2,348,370 2,806,116
263,695 316,148
152,850 65,772
600 89,576
69,981 72,515
114,847 90,290
257,600 234,149
234,977 212,062
30,000 29,999
90,515 150,000
75,936 44,481
271,435 260,019
15,928 116,598
166,939 165,069
44,800
1,745,303 1,891,478
463,007 870,327
152,667 50,885
2,000 14,837
8,357 5,237
2,371,334 2,832,764
(22,964) (26,648)
2 20,566
43,392 35,000
459 3,645
43,853 59,211
20,889

32,563






